91622, 2:34 PM SEC Document Submission

(LR RN R A

'ﬁ = SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

secretariat Building, PICC Complex, Roxas Boulevard, Pasay Qity, 1307 Metra Manila Phifippines
Tel:(632) @18-0921 Fax:(632) B18-5293  Email; mis@sec.gov.ph

Barcode Page
The following document has been received:

Receiving Donna Encarnado

Receiving Branch: SEC Head Office

Receipt Date and Time: August 15, 2022 02:34:00 FM
Received From: Head Office

Company Representative

Doc Source

Company Information
SEC Registration No. 0000039285

Company Name R. COYIUTO SECURITIES INC.
Industry Classification
' Company Type Stock Corporation

Document Information

Document |D 209162252006149

Document Type ANNUAL AUDITED FINANCIAL REPOR
Document Code 52AR

Period Covered December 31, 2021

Mo. of Days Late

Department

Remarks

odrs.sec.local B0 DocumentSubmission/



BiM5/22, 4:52 PM Yahoo Mail - Your BIR AFS eSubmission uploads were received

Your BIR AFS eSubmission uploads were received

From: eafs@bir.gov.ph
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Metro Manila Philippines

COVER PAGE

Information Required of Brokers and Dealers Pursuant to Rule 52.1-5 of the Securities Regulation Code {5EC),

Report for the Year Beginning January 1, 2021 and Ended December 31, 2021,

IDENTIFICATION OF BROKER OR DEALER

Name of Broker/Cealer: R. Coyluto Secwrities, Inc.
Address of Principal Place of Business : 5th Floor, Corinthian Plaza
121 Paseo De Roxas, Legaspi Village Makati City

Mame and Phone Number of Person to Contact in Regard to this Repart:

Mame : Vito 5. Caragan
Tel. No. {02] BE11-3066
Fax No. {02] B811-3073

IDENTIFICATION OF ACCOUNTANT

Name of Independent Auditors whose oplnion Is contained In this report:

B7E7 Avala Avenue, Makati City
Philippines 1209

Tireso Randy F. Lapider
Bartner
CP& License Mo 0092183
SEC Accreditation Mo, 92183-5EC, Group A,
valid for one year covering the avdit of 2021 financial Statements
Tax ldentification No. 162-411-175
BIR Accraditation No. DB-D01987-034-2020
Issued July 20, 2020; valid until July 19, 2023
PTR Mo, MET 8854089
Issued january 3, 2022 at Makati City

Name: R.G. Manabat & Co. Tel Mo, <63 (2) BRES 7000
BOASPRC Reg No. 003 Fax +63 (2) BROE 1985
SEC Accreditation Mo, 003-1C Email  ph-inouiry@kpme.com
Address: The KPMG Center, &/F




R. Coyiuto
Securities, Inc.

Kambgr | Plebpping Siock Exchange

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Management of R. Coyiuto Securities, Inc. is responsible for the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial siatemenls including the schedules attached therein, for
the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, in accordance wilh the prescribed
financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary o enable the preparation of financial slatements
that are free from malerial misstalement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, managemenl is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matiers
related 1o going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operalions, or has no
realistic alternative but lo do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the
schedules altached therein and submits the same to the stockholders,

F.G. Manabal & Co., the independent auditor appointed by the stockholders, has
audited the financial statemenls of the Company in accordance with Philippine
Standards on Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders, has expressed its opinion on
irnesg of presentation upon completion of such audit.

[
SAMUE . COYIU ‘
Chairmdn of the Bdard ¢ C

RiA ROSALINA T. COYIUTO
President

ROSIE T. COYIUTO

Signed this 15th day of August 2022

Sty Floarn Cuernlfvan Plazgs. 12) Priea o Rokds. Logasoy Vinape. Mekair l__..-'__; 1229, Philippioes
Tel, Nos.: 817 3064 to 67 = 871 23071 Tethag Floor 630 £207 1o 07 « 834 5005 PR #--8070—
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COVER SHEET

for
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEC Registration Number

j|9|2(8]|5
COMPANY NAME
R|. ClOlY|I|U|T]O S|IE|CIU/R|II|T]I|E|S], I|N|C
PRINCIPAL OFFICE (Mo. / Street /| Barangay / City / Town / Province)
5[t]h Fll]lo]o]|r Clojr]li|n]t]lhlijaln Plllalz]|a
11211 Pla|s|e|o d|e Rlo|x]als Lle|lglals|p]|i
ViiJl]llalgle Mlalklal|t]i Cli|t]y
Form Type Department rnqulring the report Secondary License Type, If Applicable
5 2 AR E MD
COMPANY INFORMATION
Company's email Address Company's Telephone Number/s Mobile Number
r_coyiutosec@yahoo.com 811-3006 -
Mo. of Stockholders Annual Meeting (Month | Day) Fiscal Year (Month | Day)
13 April 3 December 31
CONTACT PERSON INFORMATION
The designated contact person MUST be an Officer of the Corporation
Mame of Contact Person Email Address Telephone Number/s Mobile Number

Vito S. Caragan vita reoyiutosecuritiss @gmail.com = p

CONTACT PERSON's ADDRESS

Sth Floor, Corinthian Plaza, 121 Paseo de Roxas, Legaspi Village, Makati City

Note T: it case of deatly, resignation or cessation of office of the officer designated as contact persory, such incidert shall be reported fo the
Comrnission within thiry (30) calendar days o the ocoumence thereof with inforrmetion and compliete contact detalls of the new contact person
desigrtod

2 Al Boxes must be properly and completely lledup. Failure to do so shall couse the delay in updating the corporation’s recortds with
the Commission andor norqrecept of Notice of Defickencies. Furthor, norrecegd of Notice of Deficiencies shall not excuse the corporation from

Eahilty for fts deficioncies.
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R. COYIUTO SECURITIES, INC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2021 and 2020

With Independent Auditors’ Report



KPMG

R.G. Manabat & Co.

The KPMG Center, 6/F

6787 Ayala Avenue, Makati City
Philippines 1209

Telephone +63 (2) 8885 7000

Fax +63 (2) 8894 1985
Internet www.home.kpma/ph
Email ph-inquiry@kpmg.com

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
R. Coyiuto Securities, Inc.

5" Floor, Corinthian Plaza

121 Paseo de Roxas

Legaspi Village, Makati City

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of R. Coyiuto Securities, Inc. (the Company),
which comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2021 and 2020,
and the statements of profit or loss, comprehensive income (loss), changes in equity and
cash flows for the years then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, and
its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (FFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

54
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Stafernents

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= (btain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

=  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to maodify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

At
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= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations
No. 15-2010 of the Bureau of Internal Revenue

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information in Note 23 to the basic
financial statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal
Revenue and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
supplementary information is the responsibility of management. The supplementary
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the
basic financial statements. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated,
in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

R.G. MANABAT & CO.

TIRESO RANDY F. LAF‘ID
Partner
CPA License No. 0092183
SEC Accreditation No. 92183-SEC, Group A, issued on July 15, 2021,
valid for one (1) year covering the audit of 2021 financial statements
SEC Accreditation No. 92183-SEC, Group A, issued on April 12, 2022,
valid for five (5) years covering the audit of 2022 to 2026 financial statements
Tax ldentification No. 162-411-175
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001987-034-2020
Issued July 20, 2020; valid until July 19, 2023
PTR No. MKT 8854069
Issued January 3, 2022 at Makati City

August 15, 2022
Makati City, Metro Manila
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R.G. Manabat & Co.

The KPMG Center, 6/F

6787 Ayala Avenue, Makati City
Philippines 1209

Telephone +63 (2) 8885 7000

Fax +63 (2) 8894 1985
Internet www.home. kpma/ph
Email ph-inquiry@kpmg.com

SUPPLEMENTAL WRITTEN STATEMENT OF AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
R. Coyiuto Securities, Inc.

5" Floor, Corinthian Plaza

121 Paseo de Roxas

Legaspi Village, Makati City

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of R. Coyiuto Securities, Inc.
(the Company) as at and for the year ended December 31, 2021, on which we have
rendered our report dated August 15, 2022.

In compliance with the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, we are stating that
the Company has ten (10) stockholders owning one hundred (100) or more shares each.

R.G. MANABAT & CO.

T!RESD@F LAPIE‘;%;

Partner
CPA License No. 0092183
SEC Accreditation No. 92183-SEC, Group A, issued on July 15, 2021,
valid for one (1) year covering the audit of 2021 financial statements
SEC Accreditation No. 892183-5EC, Group A, issued on April 12, 2022,
valid for five (5) years covering the audit of 2022 to 2026 financial statements
Tax |dentification No. 162-411-175
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001987-034-2020
Issued July 20, 2020; valid until July 19, 2023
PTR No. MKT 8854069
Issued January 3, 2022 at Makati City

August 15, 2022
Makati City, Metro Manila
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R. COYIUTO SECURITIES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31

2021 2020
Money Security Valuation Monay Security Valuation
Note Balance Long Short Bakance Lang Shon

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 4 P155,911,301 P147, 416,806
Short-term investmants 5 13,221,717 12,435,270
Financial assets at falr value through

profit or lnss a 2,462,383 P2,445.401 2,300,207 F2,309,297
Receivable from

Clearing housa 7 . 6,326,676

Customers - nef (3 16,754,144 165,832 658 26,381,100 404 541,637

Brokers 7 B2,622.557 -

Dihers - ned 7 2,338,628 630,283
Financial aesels at fair value through

other comprehensive Income 89 53,588,778 38,283,602
Exchange trading right & 25,000 23,000
Property and equipment i 6,165,772 11,267,604
Deferred tax assel - net 17 118,287 197,065
Other assals (i} 3,080,528 2,809,403

Total Assats P336,287.702 F168,279,059 P24B8,172 224 P406.040,0934
Securties in Box and Fhilipping

Deposdary & Trust Corporation P4.118,191,702 11,284 264 454
Forward
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Decembar 31

203 2020
Money Sacurity Valuation Ty Security Valuation
Neate Balance Long Short Balance Lang Short
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Payabls toc
Customers 12 15  P133,15555%  P4,118,181,792 P148,522,877 P11,264, 264,454
Brokers 12 - 713 67 441 P414,400
Clearing Houss 12 77,619,712 -
Accounts payable and accrued
BADENSES 13 13,483,361 12,953,938
Lease lizbirtios 18 5,504,934 10,453, 796
Pansion benefits obligation 14 3,134,220 3,263,434
Advances from a stockholder 15 12,500,000 .
Income tax payable 17 — 106,674
Total Liabilities 245,397,786 175,350,372
Equity
Capital stock 19 50,000,000 50,000,000
Met unrealizad gain on financial
assels at fair value throwgh olher
COMpretensive income B 51,311,775 38,008,692
Resmzasuremant gain on definad
benefits pian 14 2,856,835 2,473,184
Retained earmings (deficit): 21
Appropriatied 10,355,226 10,355,226
\Unappropristed (25,633,230) (28,074 650)
Treasury shares 19 {600) (600)
Total Equity 90,880,006 72,821,852
P336,287,792 P4, 118.181,792  P4,118,191,792  P248,172.224  P1.2B4,331,805  P1,284,331.805
Sag Males fo he Financial Slalsmanis
(~
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R. COYIUTO SECURITIES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Years Ended December 31

Note 2021 2020
INCOME
Commission income P15,935,827 P10,374,803
Rent income 15, 18 2,458,000 2,111,781
Dividend income 6,8 2,048,600 167,608
Feversal of provision for impairment
losses - net 7, 11 867,679 361,652
Foreign exchange gain (loss) - net 771,118 (660,564)
Interest income 4.5 512,278 1,925,496
Others 16 1,310,560 52,654
23,904,062 14,333,430
EXPENSES
Compensation and fringe benefits 15 6,111,401 6,280,785
Depreciation and amortization 10, 18 5,513,306 5,602,813
Rent expense 18 2,215,306 1,629,538
Management fees 866,240 954,080
Trading charges and fees 765,132 1,041,491
Securities and janitorial 764,370 1,001,089
Entertainment, amusement and recreation 624,052 381,228
Utilities 606,916 575,749
Professional fees 602,580 459,618
Taxes and licenses 511,434 838,537
Interest expense - lease liabilities 18 451,439 708,190
Communications 403,662 376,740
Subscription and periodicals 372,408 382,008
Office supplies 287,760 269,667
Retirement benefits expense 14 156,590 129,716
Repairs and maintenance 141,133 163,662
Transportation and trave| 110,673 56,505
Gasoline and fuel 76,039 80,823
Fine and penalties 65,801 425,210
Fair value loss (gain) on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss 41,281 (5,684)
Others 498,755 397,929
21,186,278 21,749,694
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 2,717,784 (7.416,264)
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 17 (336,364) (413,509)
NET INCOME (LOSS) P2,381,420 (P7,829,773)
See Noles lo the Financial Statemenis,
1% T &
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R. COYIUTO SECURITIES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Years Ended December 31
Note 2021 2020

NET INCOME (LOSS) P2,381,420 (P7,828,773)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

ltem that will be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods
Unrealized gain (loss) on financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income -
net of tax effect 8 15,303,083 (4,813,683)

ftem that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods
Remeasurement gain (loss) on defined benefits

obligation 14 383,655 (43,023)
15,686,738 (4,856,706)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) P18,068,158 (P12,686,479)

Ses Noles lo the Financial Staterments.



R. COYIUTO SECURITIES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Years Ended Decamber 31

Net Unrealized
Gain on
Fimancial
Assets at Fair Reserves
Valua through on Actuarial
Other Gain {Loss)
Comprehensive on Defined
Capital Stock Income Benefits Plan __ Retained Earnings Traasury
Node {Mote 19} (Mole 8} Nede 14)  Appropriated  Unapproprlated Shares Total
Balances at January 1. 2021 PS0.000,000 38,008,692 PZ473,184 P10,355 226 [P28,014,650) (PEOD) PT2.821 852
Mat income - - - - 2,381,420 = 2,381,420
Other comprehensive less B 74 15,303,083 383,655 - - 15,686,718
Balances at December 31,

2021 P50,000,000 P53,311,775 P2 B56,839 P10,355,226 [P25,633.230) [PEOD) PO, 890,010
Balances at Janwary 1, 2020 F50,000,000 P42.822 375 P2.516,207 P10.355,220 (P20, 184 877 (PEDD) PB5, 508,331
Nel koas - - - - (7.829.773) - (r.azerra
Cnher compeehensive lnss 5 14 (4,813.683) (43,023 . (4,856 T05)
Balances at December 31,

2050 F50,000.000 F33,008,682 F2473,184 P10,366, 2246 {P28,014,650) (PED} P72,821.852
See Noles fo he Financia! Slafsmnants
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R. COYIUTO SECURITIES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

Note 2021 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax P2,717,784 (P7,416,264)
Adjustments for;
Depreciation and amortization 10, 18 5,513,306 5,602,813
Interest expense 14, 18 549,290 841,913
Retirement benefits expense 14 156,590 129,716
Fair value loss (gain) on securities at fair
value through profit or loss (3] 41,281 (5,684)
{Gain on reversal of provision) Provision for
impairment losses on;
Receivables 7 (B67,679) (513,970)
Other assets 11 - 152,318
Interest income 4,5 (512,278) (1,925,496)
Foreign exchange losses (771,118) 660,564
Dividend income G, 8 (2,048,600) (167.608)
4,778,576 (2,641,698)
Changes in:
Receivable from:
Clearing house 6,326,676 (3,356,375)
Customers 9,304,461 23,064
Brokers (82,622,557) -
Others (547,679) (110,544)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss {104,367) 13,847
Other assets (312,618) (185,514)
Payable to:
Customers (15,367,318) (12,641,228)
Brokers (9,713) (107,005)
Clearing house 77,619,712 -
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 489,423 (359,204)
(445,404)  (19,364,657)
Interest received 541,802 2,043,235
Dividend received 2,048,600 167,608
Income tax paid (323.404) (492,330)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities 1,821,594 {17,646,144)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from maturity and disposal of:
Short-term investments ] 12,435,270 -
Acquisitions of:
Short-term investments 5 (13,221,717) (12,435,270)
Froperty and equipment 10 (411,469) (59,157)
Net cash used in investing activities {(1,197,916) (12,494 ,427)
Forward
(7 '
—o_ 17,-SEP 21

Fie

e
‘I



Years Ended December 31

Note 2021 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES
Froceeds from deposit for stock subscription P12,500,000 P -
FPayment of lease liabilities 18 (5,400,301) (5,143,143)
Met cash provided by (used in) financing

activities 7,099,699 (5,143,143)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 7,723,377 (35,283,714)
EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES

IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 771,118 (660,564)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT__BEGINN ING OF YEAR 147,416,806 183,361,084
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF YEAR 4 P155,911,301 P147,416,806
Ses Nales lo the Financial Siaterments.
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R. COYIUTO SECURITIES, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Reporting Entity

R. Coyiuto Securities, Inc. (the Company) is a domestic corporation organized to
engage in buying, selling, or dealing in stocks, bonds, and other securities for its own
account as a dealer or for the account of others as a stockbroker; to be a member of
any stock exchange; and to render financial advisory services. The Company was
registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on
September 10, 1969. On March 11, 2015, it was approved by at least a majority of
the Board of Directors (BOD) and stockholders owning and representing at least
two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock that the Articles of Incorporation will
be amended to extend the existence of the Company to another fifty (50) years from
its original expiry date. The Philippine SEC approved the amended Articles of
Incorporation on May 7, 2015,

The registered office address of the Company is at 5th Floor, Corinthian Plaza,
121 Paseo de Roxas, Legaspi Village, Makati City.

2. Basis of Preparation

Basis of Accounting
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine

Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs). They were authorized for issue by the
Company's BOD on August 11, 2022,

Details of the Company's significant accounting policies are included in Note 22.

Basis of Measurement

These financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost basis of
accounting except for financial instruments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) and fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) which
are both measured at fair value, and retirement benefits obligation which is
recognized at the present value of the benefit obligations.

Functional and Presentation Currency

These financial statemenis are presented in Philippine peso (P, PHP), which is also
the Company's functional currency. All financial information presented in P or PHP
have been rounded to the nearest peso, unless otherwise indicated.

3. Use of Judgments and Estimates

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the Company’s accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual
results may differ from these estimates,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.



Judgments
Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the

most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is as
follows:

Classifying Financial Instruments

The Company exercises judgment in classifying a financial instrument, or its
component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, financial liability or an
equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement
and the definition of a financial asset, financial liability or an equity instrument. The
substance of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form, govemns its
classification in the statement of financial position.

The Company uses its judgment in determining the classification of financial assets
based on its business model in which assets are managed and their cash flow
characteristics. The classification and fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are presented in Note 20.

Identifying Leases - Company as Lessee

The Company uses its judgment in assessing that a contract is, or contains, a lease
when the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. The Company has the right to control
the asset if it obtains substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the
identified asset throughout the period of use and when the Company has the right to
direct the use of the identified asset. The Company reassesses whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease only if the terms and conditions of the contract are changed.

The Company has lease contracts for office and parking spaces used in its
operations. The Company has determined that it has the right to control the use of
the identified assets over their respective lease terms.

Further details on the leases are disclosed in Note 18,

Defermining the Lease Term of Coniract with Renewal and Termination Options -
Company as Lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease,

together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably

certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if

itis reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has lease contracts that include renewal options. The Company
applies judgment in evaluating whether it is reasonably cerain whether or not to
exercise the option to renew the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that
create an economic incentive for it to exercise the renewal. After the commencement
date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or
change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or
not to exercise the option to renew.

The Company excluded the renewal period as part of the lease term for its current
long-term lease contract as it is delermined to be renewable upon mutually
acceptable terms and conditions of both the lessee and the lessor.

Further details on the leases are disclosed in Note 18.
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Operating Lease - Company as Lessor

The Company has entered into subleasing arrangement to lease a portion of its
office spaces. The Company has determined that the original lessor retains all
significant risks and rewards of ownership of this property.

Further details on the sublease are disclosed in Note 15.

Short-ferm Leases and Leases of Low-valug Assels

The Company applies the short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the leases of low-value assets recognition
exemption to leases that are considered of low value (i.e., below P216,000). Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Determining Functional Currency

Philippine Accounting Standard (PAS) 21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates, requires management to use its judgment to determine the entity's
functional currency such that it most faithfully represents the economic effects of the
underlying transactions, events and conditions that are relevant to the entity. Based
on the economic substance of underlying circumstances relevant to the Company,
management determined that the functional currency of the Company is the PHP.
The PHP is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Company operates, and it is the currency that mainly influences the cost of providing
the goods.

Assumptions and Estimation Uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant
risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the next financial year is as follows:

Provision for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on Financial Assets

The Company uses the ECL model in estimating the level of allowance which
includes forecasts of future events and conditions. A credit loss is the difference
between the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows expected to be received discounted at the original effective interest
rate (EIR). The model represents a probability-weighted estimate of the difference
over the remaining life of the financial asset. Lifetime ECL is calculated by multiplying
the lifetime Probability of Default by Loss Given Default (LGD) and Exposure at
Default (EAD). LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. The
Company estimates LGD parameters based on the history of recovery rates of
claims against defaulted counterparties. EAD represents the expected exposure in
the event of a default. The Company derives the EAD from the current exposure to
the counterparty. The EAD of a financial asset is its gross camying amount at the
time of default.

Further details on the carrying amounts of financial assets are disclosed in Notes 4,
56,7 8and 11.

Fair Value of Financial fnstruments

If the financial instruments are not traded in an active market, the fair value is
determined using valuation technigues. Where valuation techniques are used to
determine fair values, they are validated and periodically reviewed by qualified
personnel independent of the area that created them.
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All models are certified before they are used and are calibrated to ensure that
outputs reflect actual data and comparative market prices. To the extent practicable,
models use only observable data, however areas such as credit risk (both own and
counterparty), volatiliies and correlations require management to make estimates.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect reported fair values of
financial instruments.

The specific methods and assumptions used by the Company in estimating the fair
values of its financial instruments are disclosed in Note 22,

Useful Lives of Property and Equipment

The Company estimates the useful lives of property and equipment based on the
period over which the assels are expected to be available for use. The estimated
useful lives of property and equipment are reviewed periodically and are updated if
expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical
or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the property and
equipment. However, it is possible that future results of operations could be
materially affected by changes in the estimates brought about by changes in factors
mentioned above. The amounts and timing of recording of expenses for any period
would be affected by changes in these factors and circumstances,

A reduction in the estimated useful lives of the property and equipment would
increase depreciation and decrease the property and equipment account,

Further details on the cammying amount of property and equipment are disclosed in
Note 10.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assels

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that the
carrying amount of nonfinancial assets may be impaired or that the previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.

The factors that the Company considers important which could trigger an impairment
review include the following:

» significant underperformance relative o the expected historical or projected
future operating results;

= significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy
for overall business; and

= significant negative industry or economic trends,

The Company assessed that the carrying amounts of its nonfinancial assets
approximate their recoverable amounts,

Estimation of Retirerment Benefits

The present value of the pension obligation is determined using actuarial valuations.
An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount
rate, future salary increases and future pension increases. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefits obligation (DBO)
is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date.
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The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. The discount rate
assumption is based on the Bankers Association of the Philippines PHP Bloomberg
Valuation Reference Rates benchmark reference curve for the government securities
market considering average years of remaining working life of the employees as the
estimated term of the DBO.

Further details on retirement benefits liability are disclosed in Note 14.

Deferred Tax Assels

Deferred tax assets are recognized for financial statement and tax differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which these
differences can be ulilized. Significant management judgment is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits, together with future tax planning
strategies.

Further details on deferred taxes are disclosed in Mote 17.

Leases - Esfimating the Incremental Borrowing Rafe (IBR)

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease,
therefore, it uses its IBR to measure lease liabilities. The |BR is the rate of interest
that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar
security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use
assets in a similar economic environment. The |BR therefore reflects what the
Company ‘would have to pay', which requires estimation when no observable rates
are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of
the lease. The Company estimates the IBER using observable inputs such as market
interest rates when available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates
such as the Company's stand-alone credit rating.

Further details on leases are disclosed in Note 18.

4, Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of;
Note 2021 2020
Cash equivalents 20 P102,185,805 P101,807,220
Cash in banks 20 53,710,496 P45,504 586
Cash on hand 15,000 15,000

P155,911,301 P147.416,806

Cash in banks pertain to savings, checking and demand deposit accounts eaming
interest at prevailing bank deposit rates. Cash equivalents include unrestricted time
deposits with up to three (3) months of maturity. Cash equivalents bear 0.15% and
0.63% annual interest in 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Interest income earned on cash in banks and cash equivalents presented under
“Interest income” in the statement of profit or loss amounted to P0.44 million and
P1.92 million in 2021 and 2020, respectively.



In compliance with Securities Regulation Code (SRC) Rule 49.2 covering customer
protection and custody of securities, the Company maintains a special reserve bank
account for the exclusive benefit of its customers amounting to P34.02 million and
P33.27 million as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The Company's
reserve requirement is determined weekly based on the SEC’'s prescribed

computations,

5. Short-term Investments

This account consists of time deposits with a commercial bank amounting to
P13.22 million and P12.44 million as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
The time deposits bear 0.15% to 0.25% annual interest in 2021 and 2020, and with
more than 90 days maturity. Interest income eamed from short-term investments
presented under “Interest income” in the statement of profit or loss amounted to
P0.07 million and P0.01 million in 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Movements in this account are as follows:

Note 2021 2020
Balance at January 1 P12,435,270 P -
Placements 13,221,717 12,435,270
Maturities (12,435,270) -
Balance at December 31 20 P13,221,717 P12,435,270

6. Financial Assets and Securities at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL consist of investments in equity securities listed in the
Philippines Stock Exchange (PSE). The roliforward analysis of this account is as

follows:
Note 2021 2020
Balance at January 1 P2,399,297 P2,407 460
Additions 2,911,427 2,628,200
Disposals (2,807,060) (2,642,047}
Fair value (loss) gain (41,281) 5,684
Balance at December 31 20 P2,462 383 F2,399,297

Dividend income earned from financial assets at FVTPL amounted to P0.13 million
and P0.17 million in 2021 and 2020, respectively.

7. Receivables

Receivable from clearing house amounted to nil and P6.33 million as at
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Receivable from brokers amounted to
P82.62 million, partially secured by P57.70 million shares of stocks as collateral, and
nil as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.



Receivables from customers consists of:

2021 2020
Money Security Maney Security
Balance Valuation-long Balance  Valuation-long
Cash and fully secured accounts:
More than 250% P3,684,083 P142,054,610 P23,375 046 P400,672 999
Between 200% and 250% - - 403,745 933,682
Between 150% and 200% 12,864,508 23,344 680 40,678 65,400
Between 100% and 150% - - 2,011,388 2,071,000
Partially secured accounts: 3,013,735 -
Less than 100% 2,984,495 433,368 1,226,478 798,556
Unsecured accounts 1,236,524 - * =
20,769,610 165,832,658 30,074,071 404 541,637
Less: Allowance for impairment
lozses {4,015,466) {3,692 062) -
P16,754,144 P165,832,658 P26,381,109 P404 541 637
Gross receivables from customers are further classified as follows:;
2021 2020
Individual P19,768,608 F29,579,994
Corporate 1,001,002 494,077
P20,769,610 P30,074,071

Rollforward analysis of allowance for impairment losses based on the Company's

collective assessment is as follows:

Note 2021 2020
Balance at January 1 P3,692,962 P4,230,668
Provision 322,504 -
Reversal - (546,706)
Balance at December 31 20 P4,015,466 P3,692,962
Other receivables consist of;
Note 2021 2020
Advances to employees and shareholders 15 P1,784,115 P1,487,728
Rent 15 534,076 303,221
Dividend 353,905 353,905
Interest 20,437 29,527
2,692,533 2,174,381
Less: Allowance for impairment losses
on advances to employees and
officers & (1,190,183)
Less: Allowance on dividend receivable (353,905) (353,905)
P2,338,628 PE30,293

Interest receivable pertains to accrued interest income from cash and cash

equivalents, and shori-term investments.



8. Financial Assets at FVOCI

This account consists of:

Note 2021 2020

Cost P275,000 P275,000
Unrealized gain on financial assets at

FVOCI 53,311,775 38,008,692

9,20 P53,586,775  P38.283,602

The reliforward of financial assets at F\WVOCI is as follows:

2021 2020

Balance at the beginning of year P38,283,602 P43,097 375
Fair value gain (loss) recognized in other

comprehensive income (OC1) 15,303,083 (4,813,683)

Balance at the end of the year P53,586,775  P38,283,692

Financial assets at FVOC| consist of investments in club shares and PSE shares.
The fair values of the financial assets have been determined using the published
price in an active market and closing price published by PSE as at December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively.

The roliforward of the unrealized gain in OCl is as follows:

2021 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year P38,008,692 P42,822 375
Fair value gain (loss) recognized in OCI 15,303,083 (4,813,683)
Balance at the end of the year P53,311,775 F38,008,692

Dividend income earned from financial assets at FVOC| amounted to P1.92 million
and nil in 2021 and 2020, respectively.

9. Exchange Trading Right

Under the PSE rules, all exchange trading rights are pledged at its full value to the
PSE to secure the payment of all debts to other members of the exchange arising
out of or in connection with the present or future members' contracts.

SRC prescribed the conversion of the PSE into a stock corporation effective
August 8, 2001, pursuant to a conversion plan approved by the SEC.

In August 2001, the SEC approved the conversion plan with the following salient
features, among others:

a. Existing 184 member-brokers as of August 8, 2001 are eligible to subscribe to
the shares and to retain access to the trading facilities of the PSE;

b. Each member shall subscribe to 50,000 shares at a par value of P1:

c. The balance of the members’ contribution amounting to P50,000,000 shall be

treated as additional paid-in capital;

Separation of ownership of the PSE and from access to trading;

e. Issuance of trading rights in recognition of the existing seat ownership by the
brokers;

a



f. Policy of imposing a moratorium on the issuance of new trading rights: and
g. Transferability of trading rights.

The PSE, however, did not issue shares of stock for the value of its donated assets,

As a result of the conversion plan and on the basis of the relative fair values of the
PSE shares and the exchange trading right as of the time of the demutualization, the
Company's membership in PSE originally amounting to P50,000, was bifurcated into
(a) investment in PSE shares, classified as financial assets at FVOC! and
(b) exchange trading right.

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the carrying values of the financial assets and
the exchange trading right were as follows:

Note 2021 2020
Financial assets at F\VVOCI 8§ P53,586,775  P38,283,692
Exchange trading right 25,000 25,000

P53,611,775 P38,308,692

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company owns 239,985 shares of PSE,

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the fair value less cost to sell of the exchange
trading right amounted to P9.00 million and P8.50 million, respectively, representing
the price of the exchange trading right of the most recent sale approved by the PSE
on December 14, 2011. As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the market value of the
PSE shares based on quoted prices is P215 and P153 per share, respectively.

10. Property and Equipment

Rollforward analysis of this account is as follows:

2021
Right-of-Use
Office  Transportation Asset Leasehold

Equipment Equipment (Mot 18] Improvements Total
Cast
Balance at beginning of year PB,706,222 PB.442.208 P17,225,337 P - P34,373,T6T
Additions 411,469 - - - 411,469
Balance at end of year 9,117,691 B,442 208 17,225,337 - 34,785,236
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance al baginning of year 8,594,185 6,900,774 T.611.194 - 23,108,158
Depreciation 231,951 474,285 4,807,070 - 5,513,308
Balance at end of year B.B26,136 7,375,064 12,418,264 - 28,619,464
Wet Book Value P291,555 P1,067, 144 P4,B07.073 P - P6,165,772

2020
Right-of-Use
Office  Transporation Azeat Leasehold
Equipment Equigsmenl [Note 18] Improvements Tots
Caost
Batance al baginning of year PH.B47 065 PB.442 208 P17,225, 337 P1,363.444 P35698, 054
Addiions 59,157 - - - 9187
Dieposals - : - [1.383.444)  (1.363.444)
Balance at end of year 8,706,222 8,442 208 17,225,337 - 34,373,767
Accumuiated deprecistion
Balance at beginning of year B.51T.667 6,181,553 2.804,125 1,383,444 18,885,749
Depreciation ¥6.518 710,226 4,807,069 - 5,602,813
Disposalis - - - {1,383 444) (1,563 444)
Balance at end of year B 504,165 6,900,778 T.Ei1,194 - 23,106,154
Net Book Value P112,037 P1,541.420 P9,614,143 P - P11.267.609
RTIFIED Tl
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Depreciation charged to profit or loss amounted to P5.51 million and P5.60 million in
2021 and 2020, respectively. Cost of fully depreciated property and equipment still
being used amounted to P16.18 million and P14.59 million as at December 31, 2021
and 2020, respectively.

No item of property and equipment has been used as collateral to secure any
liabilities of the Company. Further, no contractual commitment was entered into by
the Company to acquire items of property and equipment.

11. Other Assets

This account consists of:

Note 2021 2020
Rental deposits 18, 20 P1,796,508 P1,732,219
Creditable withholding taxes (CWTs) 1,205,363 1,204,065
Deposits to clearing and trade guaranty
fund 1,044,701 923,508
Frepayments 196,528 153,676
Income tax receivable 41,493 -

4,284,593 4,013,468
Less: Allowance for impairment losses
on CWTs 1,204,065 1,204,065

P3,080,528 P2,809,403

Movements in the allowance for impairment losses on CWTs are as follows:

2021 2020
Balance at January 1 P1,204,065 P1,051,747
Provision during the year - 152,318
Balance at December31 P1,204,065 P1,204,065
12. Payables
Payable to customers account consists of;
2021 2020
Money Security Money Security
Balance Valuation-long Balance Waluation-lang
With money balances F133,155,559 P1,272,765,935  P148522 877  P5.717,961,213
Mo money balances - 2,845,425 857 - 5,566,303,241

P133,155,559 P4,118,181,792 P148,522,877 FP11,284,264,454

Payable to brokers account consists of;

2021 2020
Money Security Valuation Money Security Valuation
Balance Long Short Balance Long Short
With money balances P - P - P - Pa,713 PES,949 P414.400
Mo money balances - - - = 1,492 -
P - P - P - P9, 713 PET 441 P414.400

Payable to clearing house amounted to P77.62 million and nil as at December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively.
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13. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expense

This account consists of:

2021 2020
Accounts payable P6,431,001 PG,270,947
Accrued expenses 6,314,976 6,207,973
Central deposit fee payable 525,568 271,691
Taxes payable 211,816 243,327

P13,483,361 P12,993,838

Accounts payable perains to amounts owed to creditors which are noninterest-
bearing and normally settled within one year.

Accrued expenses pertain to accrual of entertainment, amusement and recreation,
rental, utiliies, security and janitorial and subscription and periodicals.
The information usually required by PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets is not disclosed on the grounds that it can be expected to
prejudice the Company's position. These are noninterest-bearing and payable within
approved terms within one year.

Central deposit fee payable to Philippine Depository and Trust Corporation is
noninterest-bearing and normally settled within one year.

Taxes payable include taxes withheld from employees, suppliers, stock transaction
tax payable and valus-added tax (VAT) payable.

14. Pension Benefits Obligation

The Company does not have a formal retirement plan. However, it is subject to the
minimum requirements under Republic Act (R.A.) No. 7641, the Retirement Pay Law,
which provides for the retirement pay to qualified employees in the absence of any
retirement plan. R.A. No. 7641 requires that private employers should provide
minimum retirement benefits, equivalent to one-half salary for every year of service,
to employees who have reached the age of 60 with at least 5 years of service with
the Company. The cost of providing benefits was valued in 2021 by a professionally
qualified independent actuary. Benefits are dependent on the years of service and
the respective employee's compensation and are determined using the projected unit
credit method.

The following tables summarize the components of the pension benefit expense
recognized in the Company's statement of comprehensive income (loss) and the
amounts recognized in the statement of financial position for the pension plan.

The pension benefit expense recognized in profit or loss follows:

2021 2020

Current service cost P156,590 P129,716
Met interest cost 97,851 133,723
P254.441 F263,439

The present value of DBO recognized in the statement of financial position amounted
to P3.13 million and P3.26 million as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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The movements in the present value of DBO are as follows:

2021 2020
Balances at January 1 P3,263,434 P2,956,972
Current service cost 156,590 129,716
Interest cost 97.851 133,723
Actuarial (gain) loss (383,655) 43,023
Balances at December 31 P3,134,220 P3,263,434
The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining DBO are as follows:
2021 2020
Salary increase rate 3.00% 3.00%
Discount rate:
Beginning of year 3.00% 4.52%
End of year 5.10% 3.00%

The cumulative amount of remeasurement gains recognized in OCl is as follows:

2021 2020
Balance at beginning of the year P2,473,184 P2,516,207
Actuarial gain (loss) during the year 383,651 (43,023)
Balance at end of year P2,856,835 P2,473,184

The following sensitivity analysis has been determined based on reasonable possible
change in the discount rate, salary increase rate and turnover rate occurring at the
end of the reporting period assuming all other assumptions were held constant in
2021 and 2020. The average duration of the DBO as at December 31, 2021 is five
(5) years,

2021 2020

Increase Increase

Increase {Decrease) in Increase (Decrease) in

Assumplion (Decrease) DBO {Decrease) DBO
Discount rate 1.00% (P286,990) 1.00% (P266.828)
(1.00%) 325,502 {1.00%) 304,340

Salary increase rate 1.00% 329,172 1.00% 284 030
{1.00%) {295,170) {1.00%) (254,632)
Turmover rate 10.00% {354,979) 10.00% {120,765)
(10.00%) 354,979 (10.00%) 125,966

15. Related Party Transactions

|dentity of Related Parties

The Company has related party transactions with its key management personnel
(KMP). Prudential Guarantee and Assurance, Inc. (PGAl), an entity under common

control, and stockholders and officers.
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Significant Transactions and Balances with Related Parties
The summary of significant transactions and balances with the related parties is as
follows:

Dutstanding
Amount Payabla to Advances
of tha Receivable Customers from a Terms and
CategoryTransaction Year  MNote Transaction (Mot 7] (Mabe ) Stockholder Conditions
Prudential Guaramas
and Assurance, Ine,
= Ranl income 2021 a  P2458.000 PRI4,076 P - P - Monmanterest- bearing,
2020 a 211,781 3.2 - - unsecired,
oy impairment dug
and demandabli
Stockholders and
Officers
= fAdvances from a 2021 [#] 12, 500,000 - - 12,500,000  Meninterest- baaring,
stockholder 2030 &) - - - - unsacured
= Commission mcome 2021 [ 108,683 -
2030 [ 688,712 - - -
= Payable 1o customors 2021 [:} 716,179 - 85,049,821 . Maninberist: baaring,
2020 [ 590,023 - 84,333,642 . unsecuned
= Agdvances o 2 d 3137 1,768,615 - . Maninferest bearing,
shareholders 2020 d 301574 1455478 - . unsetured, payable
an demand
= Shart-lerm employes 2021 a T11.680 -
benafits 020 a 614400 - - -
TOTAL 2021 P2,302,691  PBS,D49.821 F12.500,000
TOTAL 2020 P1.758,689 PB4 313642 P -

a. The Company subleases to PGAI portion of the Company's office spaces.

PGAI occupies 151.24 square meters of the Company's office space in Makati
City under the lease contract commencing on June 1, 2019 and ending on
December 31, 2022 renewable at the option of PGAl at such new terms and
conditions as may be agreed by the Company and PGAL Monthly rental fee is
P0.12 million with a yearly 5% escalation rate starting January 1, 2021.

PGAIl also occupies 101.32 square meters of the Company's office space in
Baguio City under the lease contract commencing on January 1, 2021 and
ending on December 31, 2021 renewable at the option of PGAI at such new
terms and conditions as may be agreed by the Company and PGAI. Monthly
rental fee is P0.09 million. The lease contract was subsequently renewed in 2022
for another year with same terms and conditions with the previous lease contract,

Total rent income eamed by the Company amounted to P2.46 million and
P2.11 million in 2021 and 2020, respectively.

b. On September 15, 2021, equity infusions for subscription were received in the
form of cash amounting to P12.50 million. As at December 31, 2021, the
Company has not met the requirements provided below to classify it as equity,
resulling it to be classified under noncurrent liability, as "Advances from a
stockholder”, in the statement of financial position.

* The unissued authorized capital stock of the entity is insufficient to cover the
amount of shares indicated in the contract;

= There is BOD approval on the proposed increase in authorized capital stock
(for which a deposit was received by the corporation);

=  There is stockholders' approval of said proposed increase: and

= The application for the approval of the proposed increased has been
presented for filing or has been filed with the SEC.

The application for the approval of the increase is yet to be filed with the SEC as
at December 31, 2021.
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GC.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company acts as a stockbroker for its
stockholders and officers. Commission income earmed from stockholders and
officers amounted to P0.11 million and P0O.0O7 million in 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

The outstanding payable to stockholders and officers amounted to P85.05 million
and P84.33 million in 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The Company paid expenses on behalf of the shareholders. Advances to
shareholders amounted to P1.77 million and P1.46 in 2021 and 2020,
respectively,

Short-term employee benefits of key management personnel amounted to
P0O.71 milion and P0.61 milion in 2021 and 2020, respectively. Key
management personnel of the Company include directors, executives and non-
executives, and senior management.

The Company has not recorded any impairment relating to amounts owed by related
parties in 2021 and 2020, The impairment assessment is undertaken each financial
year by examining the financial position of each related party and the market in
which the related party operates.

The Company did not act as a guarantor to any of its related parties. All outstanding
balances of related party transactions will be settled in cash.

16. Other Income

The Company eamed other income amounted to P1.31 million and P0.05 million in
2021 and 2020, respectively. Included in other income are utility charges and dues

from operating lease, and other miscellaneous income.

17. Income Taxes

The components of the income tax expense are as follows:

2021 2020
Recognized in Profit or Loss
Current tax expense P155,826 P173,673
Deferred tax expense (benefit):
Current 9,853 (185,434)
Impact of change in tax rate 68,229 -
233,908 {11,861)
Final income tax 102,456 425,370
P336,364 P413,509

On March 26, 2021, the R.A. No. 11534 also known as "Corporate Recovery and
Tax Incentives for Enterprises Act" or "CREATE" Act was passed into law which
reduced the corporate income tax rates and rationalized the current fiscal incentives
by making it time bound, targeted and performance based,
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Among others, the Act includes the following significant revisions:

= Effective July 1, 2020, domestic corporations with total asseis not exceeding
F100.00 million and net taxable income of P5.00 million and below shall be
subject to 20% income tax rate while the other domestic corporations and
resident foreign corporations will be subject to 25% income tax rate;

=  Minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) rate is reduced from 2% to 1% from
July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2023;

= Percentage tax for non-VAT taxpayers is reduced from 3% to 1% from
July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2023; and

= Repeal of the improperly accumulated earnings tax.

The movements for the deferred tax asset and deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

December 31, 2020 2021 2020
Deferred tax asset;
Lease liabilities P1,376,234 P3.136,139
Deferred tax liabilities:
Right-of-use asset 1,201,769 2,884,243
Accrued rent income 55,478 54 827
1,257,247 2,939,070
Deferred Tax Asset - net P118,987 P197,068

Movements in deferred tax asset and liabilities - net comprise of:

2021 2020
At beginning of the year P197,069 P11,635
Impact of change in tax rate (9,853) -
Amounts credited to (charged against)
statement of profit or loss (68,229) 185,434
At end of the year P118,987 P197,069

The Company did not recognize deferred tax assets on the following temporary
differences because of its limited capacity to take advantage of the benefits of these
temporary differences:

2021 2020
MNet operating loss carry-over (NOLCO) P11,403,755 P14,369,383
MCIT 559,583 643,854

NOLCO
The Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) issued Revenue Regulation (RR) No. 25-2020

to implement Section 4 (b) of R.A. No. 11484, Bayanihan fo Recover as One Acl,
which provides that the NOLCO incurred for taxable years 2020 and 2021 can be
carried over as a deduction from gross income for the next 5 consecutive taxable
years immediately following the year of such loss. The said RR also defined taxable
years 2020 and 2021 to include those corporations with fiscal years ending on or
before June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2022, respectively.
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Details of the Company's NOLCO covered by RR No. 25-2020 are as follows:

Year Expiry

Incurred Year Amount Utilized Expired Balance
2020 2025 P2,400,576 P - P - P2,400,576
2021 2026 781,668 - - 781,668

P3,182,244 P - P - P3,182,244

Details of the Company's NOLCO not covered by RR No. 25-2020 which could be
carried over as a deduction from the Company's future taxable income for the next
three (3) succeeding taxable years are as follows:

Year Expiry

Incurred Year Amount  Utilized Expired Balance
2018 2021 P3,747 306 P - P3,747 306 P -
2019 2022 8,221,411 - - 8,221,411

P11,968,807 P - P3,747,396 P8.221.411

A MCIT of 1% of the gross income as at the end of the taxable year is imposed upon
any domestic corporation beginning the fourth (4th) faxable year immediately
following the taxable year in which such corporation commenced its business
operations. The Company’s MCIT is as follows:

Year Expiry

Incurred Year Amount  Ulilized Expired Balance
2018 2021 P240,102 P - P240,102 P -
2019 2022 230,179 - - 230179
2020 2023 173,573 - - 173,573
2021 2024 155,831 - - 155,831

P799,685 P - P240,102 P559,583

The reconciliation of provision for income tax computed at statutory corporate
income tax rate to provision for income tax follows:

2021 2020
Income (loss) before tax P2,717,784 (P7.416,264)
Statutory tax rate for income tax 25.00% 30.00%
Income tax expense (benefit) P679,446 (P2,224 879)
Adjustments for tax effects of:
Unrecognized deferred tax assets 136,102 3,063,754
Mondeductible expenses 161,036 202,564
Montaxable income (512,150) (50,282)
Interest income subjected to final tax (128,070) (577.648)
P336,364 P413.,509
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18. Leases

Company as a Lessee
The Company has the following lease agreements:

a. On September 27, 2019, the Company entered into a renewable lease
agreement with Grand Floridian Holdings, Inc. for a portion of the 5 floor of the
Corinthian Plaza in Legazpi, Makati City, approximately 493.28 square meters
and parking spaces situated at the basement of the said building. The lease shall
be for a definite period starting June 1, 2019 to December 31, 2022. The
Company shall pay a monthly rate of P0.49 million for the office space and P0.01
million for the parking spaces, plus 12% VAT with an escalation rate of 5%.

b. On January 21, 2021, the Company entered into a contract of lease of Room 96,
Laperal Building, a 101.32 square meters office space in Session Road, Baguio
City, with a lease term of 12 months or less, starting January 1, 2021 and ending
on December 31, 2021 in which it applies the "short-term lease” recognition
exemption. The Company shall pay a monthly rental fee of P0.19 million with
12% VAT and exclusive of 5% withholding tax, provided that the whole year's
rent shall be paid in advance by means of postdated checks to the lessor.

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company's refundable deposits
pertaining to these lease agreements amounted to P1.80 million and P1.73

million, respectively (see Note 11).

The reconciliation of the carrying amount of the right-of-use assets as at

December 31 are as follows:

2021 2020
Cost
At January 1 P17,225,337 P17.225 337
At December 31 17,225,337 17,225,337
Accumulated Amortization
At January 1 7,611,194 2,804,125
Amortization 4,807,070 4,807,069
At December 31 12,418,264 7,611,194
Carrying Amount P4,807,073 P9.614,143

The roliforward analysis of lease liabilities is as follows:

2021 2020
Beginning balances at January 1 P10,453,796  P14,888,749
Interest expense 451,439 708,190
Payments (5,400,301) (5,143,143)
Ending balances at December 31 P5,504,934 F10,453,796

Fayments consist of:

2021 2020
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities P4,948,862 P4,434 952
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities 451,439 708,191
Total P5,400,301 P5,143,143

-17 - =L 5 i g

Z’l/ OEP 2 1 20m

s



2021 2020

Maturity Analysis - Contractual
Undiscounted Cash Flows

One to five years P5,504,939 P10,286,286
Total undiscounted lease liability at
December 31 P5,504,939 P10,286,286

The following are the amounts recognized in the statement of profit or loss:

2021 2020

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets P4,807,070 P4,807,068

Interest expense on lease liabilities 451,439 708,190

Expenses relating to short-term leases 2,215,306 1,629,538
Total amount recognized in statement of profit or

loss P7,473,815 PT7.,144,796

Company as a Lessor
The Company subleased a portion of its office space. Rent income amounted to
F2.46 million and P2.11 million in 2021 and 2020, respectively (see Note 15).

19. Equity

The Company's capital stock consists of:

204 2020
Shares Amount Shares Amount
Common shares - P100 par value:
Authorzed - at baginning and end
af the year 50,000 P50,000,000 50,000 P50.000,000
Issued - at beginning and end of
the year 50,000 P50,000,000 50,000 P50,000,000
Treasury shares - at beginning and
end of the year ] GO0 & &00
Quistanding - &t beginning and end
of the year 49,994 P49,999,400 49,8994 P45,929,400

20. Financial Instruments - Risk Management and Fair Values

Risk Management

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial
instruments:

Market risk
Equity price risk
Liquidity risk
Credit risk

Market Risk

The Company's market risk (the risk of loss to future earnings, to fair values or to
future cash flows that may result from changes in the price of a financial instrument)
originates from its holdings of equity securities. The value of a financial instrument
may change as a result of changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange
rates, equity prices and other market changes.
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The Treasurer is responsible for the identification of investments that provide a
relatively stable rate of return and submit these identified investments to the
President or the BOD for approval. In addition, the Treasurer monitors the
investment portfolio performance and management's performance associated with
the investment portfolio.

Equily Price Risk

Equity price risk is the risk that future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices of individual stocks and the changes in the level of Philippine Stock
Exchange index (PSEi). The Company’s equity price risk exposure relates to equity
shares classified as financial assets at FVTPL and FVOCI.

The analysis below is performed for reasonably possible movements in the PSEi with
all other variables held constant, showing the impact on income before tax (due to
changes in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL) and equity (due to changes in
financial assets at FVOCI).

Effect on

Percentage Income Effect on

Increase/ before Tax Equity

Decrease in Increase Increase

Equity Prices (Decrease) (Decrease)

2021 +2% P49,248 P1,071,736
-2% (49,248) (1,071,736)

2020 +2% 5,798 760174
-2% (5,798) (760,174)

The impact on the Company's equity excludes the impact an transactions affecting
the net income.

The sensitivity of profit before tax is the effect of the assumed changes in the market
index on financial assets at FVTPL. The sensitivity of equity is calculated by
revaluing financial assets at FVOCI as at December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively, for the effects of the assumed changes in the market index,

Liquidity Risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its payment
obligations when they fall due under normal and stressed circumstances. To limit this
risk, management has arranged diversified funding sources in addition to its deposit
base, manages assets with liquidity in mind, and monitors future cash flows and
liquidity on a daily basis. The ligquidity position is assessed and managed by
maintaining limits on ratio of aggregate indebtedness (Al) to net liquid capital (NLC),
which should not exceed 2,000%. NLC is the equity of the Company less
non-allowable current and noncurrent assets and negative exposure for the
outstanding unsettled transactions computed by the Securities Clearing Comporation
of the Philippines (SCCP) at current market price.

The Company reported an NLC and Al amounting to P24.33 million and P160.36
million, respectively, as at December 31, 2021 and P16.24 million and P108.68
million, respectively as at December 31, 2020 (see Note 21).

As at Decemnber 31, 2021 and 2020, all financial assets and financial liabilities are

expected to be settled within one year, except for financial assets at FVTPL and
FVOCI which do not have settlement terms.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because its customers or
counterparties failed to fulfill their contractual obligations. The Company manages
and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for
customers and counterparties, and by monitoring exposures in relation to such limits.

In the normal course of business, the Company’s activities include trade execution
for its clients. These activities may expose the Company o risk arising from price
volatility which can reduce the clients’ ability to meet their obligations. To the extent
clients are unable to meet their commitments to the Company, the Company may be
required to purchase or sell financial instruments at prevailing market prices in order
to fulfill the client’s obligations.

The Company monitors concentration of credit risks on both individual and
institutional counterparty basis and limits the risk through consideration of factors
which includes the credit worthiness of the client, its financial strength, and the size
of its positions or commitments. Where considered necessary, the Company requires
a deposit of additional collateral or a reduction of securities position,

The table that follows shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the
components of the statement of financial position of the Company.

Note 2021 2020

Cash and cash equivalents (excluding

cash on hand) 4 P155,896,301 P147.401,806
Short-term investments ] 13,221,717 12,435,270
Financial assets at FVTPL (5] 2,462,383 2,399,297
Receivable from:

Clearing house T - 6,326,676

Customers 7 20,769,610 30,074,071

Brokers i 82,622,557 -

Others 7 2,692,533 2,174,381
Financial assets at F\VOC| a 53,586,775 38,283,692
Other assets:

Rental deposits 11,18 1,796,508 1,732,219

P333,048,384 P240,827 412

The Company'’s receivables from customers and brokers are secured by the related
shares of stock held by the Company for the account of the paricular customer or
broker. Such shares of stock serve as the collateral for the receivable balances and
are valued at its market price.
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The table below shows the credit quality of the Company's financial assets as
follows:

2021
MNeither Past Due nor Impaired
Standard Sub-standard
High Grade Grade Grade Past Due Total
Cash and cash
equivalents P155,896,301 P - P - P - P155,896,301
Short-term investments 13,221,717 - - - 13,221,717
Financial assets at
FVYTPL 2,462,383 - - - 2,462,383
Receivables from;
Customers* 1,259,435 - - 19,510,175 20,769,610
Brokers 82,622 557 - - 82,622 557
Dthers 2,602,533 - - - 2,602,533
Financial assets at FVOCI 53,586,775 - - - 53,586,775
Other assets:
Ranial deposits 1,796,508 - - - 1,796,508
P313,538,209 P - P - P19.510,175 P333,048,384

*Past due accounts include impaired receivables amounting to P4.02 million

2020
Meithar Past Due nor Impaired
Standard  Sub-standard
High Grade Grade Grade Fast Due Total
Cash and cash
equivalents 147,401,806 P - P - P - P147 401 806
Short-term investments 12435270 - - - 12,435,270
Financial assels atl
FVTPL 2,399,297 = - - 2,399,297
Receivables from:
Clearing house 6,326,676 - - - 6,326,676
Customers® 9,208,247 - - 20,857 824 30,074,071
Othars 630,293 - - 1,544,088 2,174,381
Financial assets at FVQC| 38,283 602 - - - 38,283,692
Other assets:
Rantal deposits 1,732,218 - - - 1,732,219
P218,415.500 P - P - P22 411,912 P240 827 412

*Pasl due accounls include impaired receivables amounting fo P3.69 million
The credit quality of the financial assets was determined as follows:

Cash and Cash Equivalenis
These are considered as high grade financial assets as they have minimal or no risk
at all.

Financial Assets at FVTPL and FVOC!

High grade pertains to counterparties that are consistently profitable and pay out
dividends. Standard grade pertains to counterparties that recently turned profitable
and have the potential of becoming a high grade company. Sub-standard grade
pertains to counterparties that are not yet profitable, speculative in nature but have
future eaming potential.

Receivables

High grade is given to customers who possess strong to very strong capacity to meet
its obligations. Standard grade is given to customers who possess above average
capacity to meet its obligations. Substandard grade is given to customers who
possess average capacity to meet its obligations. These customers are more likely
to have significant deterioration of its capacity during adverse business and
economic conditions relative to the two classes above.
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Impaired Receivables

Impaired receivables are receivables the Company determines that it is probable that
it will not be able to collect all principal and interest due based on the contractual
terms and securities agreements.

Past Due but not Impaired Recejvables

These comprise receivables where contractual payments are past due but the
Company believes that impairment is not appropriate on the basis of the level of
collateral available to the Company (Note 7).

The aging analysis of receivables follows:

2021
MNeither Past Due but not Impaired
Past Due 3o 14 to Mare than
nor impaired 13 Days 30 Days 30 Days Impaired Total
Receivables fram:
Cusiomers P1,259,435 P2,425260 P232 P17,084,683 P4,015466 P20,763,610
Brokers 82,622 557 - - - - 82622 557
PB3,881,992 P2,425260 P232 P1T084683 P4,015466 P103,392167
2020
Meither Past Due but not Impaired
FPast Due 3o 14to Mere than
nor impaired 13 Days 30 Days 30 Days Impaired Tetal
Receivables from:
Clearing house P, 326,676 P. - P - P - P - P&, 326,676
Cusiomers 9,206,247 2,358.80 - 14,816 057 3,692 962 30,074,071
Others 630,293 . . - 1,544,088 2,174,381
P16,163216  P2,358 805 P - P14816,057  P5.237050 P38575128

Fareign Currency Risk
Financial assets of the Company are mainly denominated in PHP. As such, the
Company's foreign currency risk is minimal,

Foreign currency denominated short-term investments as at December 31, 2021 and
2020 amounted to P13.22 million and nil, respectively.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in
the PHP-US dollar exchange rate, with all variables held constant, of the Company's
profit before tax as at December 31, 2021 and 2020.

2021 2020

Impact on Impact on

Profit Profit

before Tax before Tax

Change in Increase Change in Increase
Variables {Decrease) \ariables {Decrease)

Uuso +5% P38,556 +5.00% P33.028
UsD -5% (38,556) -5.00% (33,028)

There is no other impact on the Company's equity other than those already affecting
the net income.
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Fair Value Measurement

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the carrying values of the Company's financial
assets and liabilities as reflected in the statement of financial position and related
notes approximate their respective fair values as of the statement of financial
position date. The methods and assumptions used by the Company in estimating the
fair value of its financial instruments follow:

Cash and Cash Equivalents, and Short-term Investments - The carrying amount
approximates its fair value due to the relatively short-term nature of these assets.

Financial Assets and Liabilities at Amortized Cost - Carrying values approximate fair
values since these instruments are liquid and have short-term maturities. These
financial instruments comprise receivables from clearing house, customers and
others, payable to customers and brokers and rental deposits.

Financial Assets at FVTPL and FVOC/ - Fair values are generally based on quoted
market prices. For the Company’s equity investments, fair values are determined
based on the closing quoted prices of stock investments published by the PSE as
required by the SRC,

Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities - The carrying amount approximates its fair
value due to either the demand nature or the relatively short-term maturities of these
liabilities.

The following tables summarize the carrying amount and fair values of the financial
assets and liabilities, analyzed based on the hierarchy for determining and disclosing
the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technigue.

2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets Measured at Fair Value
Financial Assefs
Financial assets at FVTPL P2.462,383 P - P - P2,462 383
Financial assets at FVOCI 53,586,775 - - 53,586,775
P56,049,158 P - P - P56,049,158
Asset for Which Fair Values are
Disclosed
Nonfinancial Asset
Exchange trading right P - P - P9,000,000 P9,000.000
P - P - P3,000,000 P3,000.000
2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets Measured at Fair Value
Financial Assels
Financial assets at FWVTPL P2,399 297 P - P - P2,399,297
Financial assets at F\WVOCI 38,283,692 - - 38,283 692
P40, 682, 989 P - P - P40, 682 989
Asset for Which Fair Values are
Disciosed
Nonfinancial Assel
Exchange trading right P - P - P8,500,000  P8,500,000
P - P - P8,500.000 P&,500,000

The Company has no financial assets at FVTPL and FVOCI classified under Level 2
and 3. There have been no reclassifications from Level 1 to Level 2 category.
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The fair value of nonfinancial assets, Exchange Trading Right, is determined based
on the last transacted price as provided by the PSE.

21. Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management are to ensure that the
Company complies with externally imposed capital requirements and that the
Company maintains healthy capital ratios to support its business and maximize
shareholder's value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. In order
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of
dividend payment to shareholders, or issue capital securities. MNo changes were
made in the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years.

Regulatory Qualifying Capital

The Amended Implementing Rules and Regulations of the SRC effective
February 28, 2004 include, among others, revisions in the terms and conditions for
registration and subsequent renewal of license applicable to both exchange trading
participants and non-exchange broker dealers as follows:

a. to allow a net capital of P2,500,000 or 2.5% of aggregate indebtedness (Al),
whichever is higher, for broker dealers dealing only in proprietary shares and not
holding securities;

b. to allow the SEC to set a different net capital requirement for those authorized to
use the Risk-based Capital Adequacy (RBCA) model; and

c. fto require unimpaired paid-up capital of P100,000,000 for broker dealers, which
are either first time registrants or those acquiring existing broker dealer firms and
will participate in a registered clearing agency; P30,000,000 unimpaired paid-up
capital for those existing broker dealers that did not meet the P100,000,000
capitalization and not seeking authorization to engage in market making
transactions: P100,000,000 plus a surety bond for existing broker dealers not
engaged in market making transactions; and P2500,000 for broker dealers
dealing only in proprietary shares and not holding securities.

RBCA ratio of a broker dealer, computed by dividing the NLC by the Total Risk
Capital Requirement (TRCR), should not be less than 110%. NLC and TRCR are
computed based on the existing SRC. NLC consists of total equity adjusted for
allowance for market decline, subordinated liabilities, deferred tax assets, revaluation
reserves, deposits for future stock subscription, minority interest, if any,
contingencies and guarantees, and the total ineligible assets. Also, the Al of every
stockbroker should not exceed 2,000% of its NLC and at all times shall have and
maintain MLC of at least P5.0 million or 5% of the Al, whichever is higher.

In compliance with the requirements of the SEC, the Company obtained surety
bonds in the amount of P10,000,000 to guarantee the faithful performance of its
obligations as broker and P2,000,000 to guarantee the faithful perfformance of its
obligations as dealer of securities.
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The Company monitors capital using the Al to NLC ratio, which is the total money
liabilities divided by net liquid capital. NLC is the equity eligible for net liquid capital,
adjusted for non-allowable current and non-current assets, The Company is required

to maintain a ratio not exceeding 2,000%.

2021 2020
Al P160,355,237 P108,678,258
Equity eligible for NLC 89,513,776 69,685,710
Ineligible assets:
Other current assets 2,556,211 754,442
Fixed assets 6,165,773 11,267,611
Other assets including equity investment in PSE 56,436,319 40,939 419
Exchange trading right 25,000 25,000
Negative exposure (SCCF) - 460,701
Total ineligible assets 65,183,303 53447172
NLC P24,330,473 P16,238,538
Ratio of Al to NLC 659% 669%

As at December 31, 2021, the Company was in compliance with the RBCA ratio. The
RBCA ratio of the Company as reported to the SEC as at December 31, 2021 and

2020 are shown in the table that follows:

2021 2020
Equity eligible for NLC P89,513,776 P69,685,710
Less ineligible assets 65,183,303 53,447,172
MNLC P24,330,473 P16,238,538
Position risk P1,919,591 P1,834,595
Operational risk 4,149,556 4 510,638
Counterparty risk 79 -
Total RBCA Requirement P6,069,226 PB,345,233
Al P160,355,237 P108,678,258
5% of Al P8,017,762 F5,433,913
Required NLC (> of 5% of Al or P5,000,000) 8,017,762 5,433,013
Met RBC Excess 16,312,711 10,804,625
Ratio of Al to NLC 659% 669%
RBCA ratio 401% 256%

Further, SEC Memorandum Circular No. 16 dated November 11, 2004 provides the
guidelines on the adoption in the Philippines of the RBCA Framework for all
registered brokers dealers in accordance with SRC. These guidelines cover the
following risks: (a) position or market risk, (b)credit risks such as counterparty,
settlement, large exposure, and margin financing risks, and (c) operational risk,

The following are the definition of terms used in the above computation.

Ineligible Assels

These pertain to fixed assets and assets which cannot be readily converted into

cash,

-25-

SEP'2 1 2029



FPosition Risk Reguirement

The amount necessary to accommodate a given level of position risk. Position risk is
a risk to which a broker dealer is exposed to and arising from securities held by it as
a principal or in its proprietary or dealer account,

Operational Risk Requirement

The amount required to cover a level of operational risk. Operational risk is the
exposure associated with commencing and remaining in business arising separately
from exposures covered by other risk requirements. It is the risk of loss resulting
from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems which include,
among others, risks of fraud, operational or settlement failure and shortage of liguid
resources, or from external events.

Counterparty Risk Requirements

The amount necessary fto accommodate a given level of counterparty risk.
Counterparty risk is the risk of a counterparty defaulting on its financial obligation to a
broker dealer.

Large Exposure Risk (LER) Requirements

The amount necessary to accommodate a given level of the broker dealer LER
which is in excess of the LER limit. LER limit is the maximum permissible large
exposure and calculated as percentage of Core Equity.

Aggregate Indebtedness (Al)

Total money liabilities of a broker dealer arising in connection with any transaction
whatsoever, and includes, among other things, money borrowed, money payable
against securities loaned and securities failed to receive, the market value of
securities borrowed to the extent to which no equivalent value is paid or credited
(other than the market value of margin securities borrowed from customers and
margin securities borrowed from non-customers), customers' and non-customers'
free credit balances, and credit balances in customers' and non-customers' account
having short positions in securities.

Reserves

SRC Rule 49.1 (B), Reserve Fund of SEC Memorandum Circular No. 16, requires
that every broker dealer shall annually appropriate a certain minimum percentage of
its audited profit after tax and transfer the same to Appropriated Retained Earnings.
Minimum appropriation shall be 30%, 20% and 10% of profit after tax for broker
dealers with unimpaired paid-up capital of between P10,000,000 to P30,000,000,
between P30,000,000 to P50,000,000 million and above P50,000,000, respectively.

In compliance with the requirements of the SEC, the Company appropriated in 2014
20% of its 2013 profit after tax. No appropriation of retained eamings was made in
2021 and 2020, respectively.

Minimum Capital Reguirements
For registration and subsequent renewal of license of brokers and dealers, SRC Rule

28.1, Registration of Brokers and Dealers, requires brokers and dealers to maintain a
minimum capital requirement amounting to P100,000,000. For those existing broker
dealers that did not meet the said capitalization and not seeking authorization to
engage in market making transactions, they are required to maintain P30,000,000
unimpaired paid-up capital.

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company was in compliance with the
required P30 million unimpaired paid-up capital where it amounted to P34.72 million
and P32.34 million, respectively.
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In compliance with requirements of SEC, the Company obtained surety bonds in the
amount of P10,000,000 to guarantee the faithful performance of its obligations as
broker and P2,000,000 to guarantee the faithful performance of its obligations as
dealer of securities.

22. Significant Accounting Policies

The Company has consistently applied the following accounting policies presented in
this financial statement, except for the adoption of amendments to standards as
discussed below,

Adoption of Amendment to Standard

The Company has adopted the following amendment to standard starting January 1,
2021 and accordingly, changing its accounting policies. Except as otherwise
indicated, the adoption of this amendment to standard did not have any significant
impact on the Company’s financial statements.

= COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond June 30, 2021 (Amendment to
PFRS 16, Leases)

The amendment, issued in March 2021, extends the practical expedient
introduced by COVID-18-Related Rent Concessions (the 2020 amendments)
1 year to allow lessees not to account for rent concessions as lease
modifications if they occur as a direct consequence of COVID-19 and meet all of
the following conditions:

« the revised consideration is substantially the same as or less than the
original consideration;

» the reduction in lease payments relates to payments due on or before
June 30, 2022; and

= no other substantive changes have been made to the terms of the lease,

The Company has no rent concession occurring as a direct consequence of
COVID-19 as at December 31, 2021 and 2020.

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
April 1, 2021. Early adoption is permitted.

The Company has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all
periods presented in the financial statements.

Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Date of Recognition

Financial instruments are recognized in the statement of financial position when the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The
Company determines the classification of its financial assets on initial recognition
and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates these classifications at each
reporting date.
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All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the frade
date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing
component) or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus or minus, for an
item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

Measurement at Initial Recognition

Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value of the consideration given
{in case of an asset) or received (in case of a liability). Except for financial
instruments at FVTPL, the initial measurement of financial instruments includes
transaction costs.

Financial Assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortized cost,
FVOC| or FVTPL, based on their contractual cash flow characteristics and the
business model for managing the financial assets.

Debt Instruments

Financial Assels Measured at Amortized Cost

A financial asset that is a debt instrument, other than those that are designated at
FWVTPL, which meet both of the following conditions:

* The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

* The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.

Included in this category are the Company's cash and cash equivalents, short-term
investments and receivables.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include short term placement, cash on hand and in banks
which are stated at face wvalue. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original
maturities of 3 months or less from dates of acguisition and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Short-term Investments
Short-term investments are cerificates of deposit which are highly liquid with

maturities of more than 3 months but less than 1 year from date of acquisition and
are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
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Receivables

Receivables are initially recognized at fair value, representing the original invoice
amount. These are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, less impaimment losses, if any. Any change in their value is
recognized in profit or loss. Impairment loss s provided when there is objective
evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due to it in
accordance with the original terms of the receivables. The amount of credit loss is
the difference between the cash flows that is expected to be received discounted at
the original EIR.

Financial Assets at FVOC!
A financial asset that is a debt instrument measured at FVOCI shall meet both of the
following conditions and is not designated as FVTPL:

= The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

= The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are SPPI on the principal amount outstanding.

There are no debt instruments at FVOCI as at December 31, 2021and 2020.

Financial assets at FVTPL

All other financial assets not measured at FVOCI or at amortized cost are classified
and measured at FVTPL, except when the financial asset is part of a hedging
relationship. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized
cost or at FVOCI as FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

There are no debt instruments at FVTPL as at December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Equity Instruments
Financial assets that are equity instruments shall be classified under any of the
following categories:

*  Financial assets measured at FVTPL which shall include financial assets held for
trading; or

* Financial assets at FVOCI] which shall consist of equity instruments that are
imevocably designated at FWVOCI at initial recognition that are neither held for
trading nor contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business
combination to which PFRS 3, Business Combinalions, applies. This election is
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company has financial assets at FVOCI as
financial assets measured at FVOCI| and financial assets at FVTPL as financial
assets measured at FWVTPL.

Business Model Assessment

Business model perains to the manner by which a porifolio of financial assets will be
managed to generate cash flows such as by collecting contractual cash flows or by
both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, among others.
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The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which
a financial asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the
business is managed, and information is provided to management. The information
considered includes:

= the stated policies and objectives for the financial assets and the operation of
those policies in practice. These include whether management's strategy focuses
on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a paricular interest rate
profile, earning dividend income, matching the duration of the financial assets to
the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realizing cash
outflows through the sale of the assets;

= the risks that affect the performance of the business model and how those risks
are managed;

= how managers of the business are compensated (e.g. whether compensation is
based on the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows
collected); and

* the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the
reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for
derecognition are not considered for this purpose, consistent with the Company's
continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose financial
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Assessment whether Contractual Cash Flows are SPFI

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Company considers
the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial
asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of
contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the
assessment, the Company considers:

= contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

= terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable rate
features;
prepayment and extension features; and
terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets
(e.g. nonrecourse features).

Prepayment feature is consistent with the SPPI criterion if the prepayment amount
substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for
early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired for a
discount or premium to its contractual face amount, a feature that permit or requires
prepayment that an amount that substantially represents the contractual face amount
plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may include reasonable
additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this
criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial
recognition.

Subsequent Measurement of Financial Assets

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. The amorized cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit
or loss.
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Debt investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognized in profit or loss, Other net gains and losses are
recognized in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognized as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Amounts recognized in OC| are not
classified to profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and
losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss,

Classificalion and Measurement of Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs are
deducted from the initial measurement of the Company's financial liabilities except
for debt instruments classified at FVTPL.

Financial liakilities are subsequently measured as follows:

= financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify
for derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies;

= financial guarantee contracts;

= commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate; and

= contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination.

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, other financial liabilities at amortized cost
include payable to customers and brokers, accounts payable and accrued expenses
(excluding statutory payables), lease liabilities and DBO.

Other Financial Liabilities at Amorfized Cost

Issued financial instruments or their components which are not classified as financial
liabilities at FVTPL are classified as other financial liabiliies at amortized cost,
where the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Company having
an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder or lender,
or to satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash.
After initial measurement, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of Financial Instruments

Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or a part of a group
of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

= the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

= the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has
assumed an obligation to pay them in full without materal delay to a third party
under a "pass-through" arrangement; or

= the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and
either: (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or
(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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Where the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset and
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the
Company's continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes
the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Company could be required to pay.

Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or has expired. Where an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, with the difference in the respective carrying amounts recognized in
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive loss.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in
the statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. This is generally
not the case with master netting agreements, thus, the related assets and liabilities
are presented at gross amounts in the statement of financial position.

Determination and Measurement of Fair Value

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each statement of
financial position date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

= |n the principal market for the asset or liability; or
= In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes into account a market
participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation technique that are appropriate in the circumstances

and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

* Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) markets for identical assets or liabilities.

»  Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

= Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the statement of financial position on
a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfer have occurred between
Levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

"Day 1" Difference

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value of
other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a
valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable market,
the Company recognizes the difference between the transaction price and fair value
{a “Day 1" Difference) in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income (loss) in the period when the asset is acquired or the liability is incurred. In
cases where the transaction price used Is based on inputs which are not observable,
the difference between the transaction price and model value is only recognized in
the profit or loss in the period when the inputs become observable or when the
instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Company determines the
appropriate method of recognizing the "Day 17 Difference.

Impairment of Financial Assets

Impairment of Financial Instruments

At the date of initial application of PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, the Company uses
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort
to determine the credit risk at the date that a financial instrument was initially
recognized and compared that to the credit risk at the date of initial application.

Lifetime ECL that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instruments while 12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a
shorter period of the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECL is the maximum contractual
period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of ECL

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the present value of cash shortfalls (i.e., the difference between the
cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Company expects to receive).

ECL are discountad at the EIR of the financial assets.
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Credit-impaired Financial Assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at
amortized cost are credit-impaired. The financial asset is ‘credit impaired’ when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable
data:

significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
a breach of contract such as default or being more than the normal credit terms
of the Company;

= the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the
Company would not consider otherwise;

» jt is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
recrganization; or

= the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial
difficulties.

Presentation of Allowance for ECL in the Stafement of Financial Position
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from
the gross cammying amount of the assets.

Write-off
Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
The Company categorizes financial assets at amortized cost for write off when a
debtor fails to make payments or when it is probable that the receivable will not be
collected.

Where financial assets at amortized cost have been written off, the Company
continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due.
Where recoveries are made, these are recognized in profit or loss.

Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses represent expenses not yet incurred but are already paid. Prepaid
expenses are initially recorded as assets and measured at the amount of cash paid.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these are charged to profit or loss as they are
consumed in operations or expire with the passage of time.

Prepaid expenses are classified in the statement of financial position as current
assets when the cost of goods or services related to the prepayment are expected to
be incurred within one year or the Company's normal operating cycle, whichever is
longer, Otherwise, they are classified as noncurrent assets,

Exchange Trading Right

Exchange trading right is a result of a PSE conversion plan to preserve access of the
Company to the trading facilities and to continue to transact business in the PSE.
The exchange trading right is deemed to have an indefinite useful life as there is no
foreseeable limit to the period over which this asset is expected to generate net cash
inflows for the Company. The Company does not intend to sell the exchange trading
right in the near future.

Exchange trading right is carried at the amount allocated from the original cost of the
exchange membership seat, after a corresponding allocation was made to the value
of the PSE shares, less allowance for impairment loss. The trading right is not
amortized but is tested annually for any impairment in realizable value. Any
impairment loss is taken up as a charge against current operations.
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Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. Such cost includes the cost of replacing the part of such property
and equipment when that cost is incurred, and if the recognition criteria are met but
excludes repairs and maintenance costs.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
five (5) to ten (10) years. The depreciation method and useful life are reviewed
periodically to ensure that the method and period of depreciation are consistent with
the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property and equipment.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognized.

The carrying values of the property and equipment are reviewed for impairment
when events or changes In circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the
estimated recoverable amounts, an impairment loss is recognized in the profit or loss
(see accounting policy on Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets).

Impaiment of Monfinancial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that
property and equipment may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for a nonfinancial asset is required, the Company makes
an estimate of the nonfinancial asset's recoverable amount. A nonfinancial asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the nonfinancial
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other nonfinancial assets or groups of nonfinancial assets. When the carrying
amount of a nonfinancial asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the nonfinancial
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the nonfinancial asset.

An impairment loss is charged in profit or loss in the year in which it arises.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication
that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to its recoverable amount. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment
loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
to the extent that the increase in value of the asset does not exceed the carrying
amount at the reversal date.
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Deposit for Future Stock Subscription
Deposit for future stock subscription is recognized as an equity instrument if
elements below are present:

* The unissued authorized capital stock of the enlity is insufficient to cover the
amount of shares indicated in the contract;

* There is BOD's approval on the proposed increase in authorized capital stock
(for which a deposit was received by the corporation);
There is stockholders' approval of said proposed increase; and
The application for the approval of the proposed increase has been filed with the
SEC.

As at December 31, 2021, the Company has not met the requirements provided
above and, as a result, the deposit for future stock subscription is classified as
noncurrent liability, under "Advances from stockholder”, in the statement of financial
position.

Capital Stock

Capital stock is classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issuance of capital stock and share options are recognized as deduction from equity,
net of any tax effects.

Preferred share capital is classified as equity if it is non-redeemable, or redeemable
only at the option of the Company, or if the dividend payments are discretionary.
Dividends thereon are recognized as distributions within equity upon approval by the
BOD of the Company.

Retained Eaminas

Retained eamings include accumulated results of operations as reported in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income (loss) less any dividends
declared. Dividends are recorded in the period in which the dividends are approved
by the BOD.

Unappropriated retained earnings represent that portion which is free and can be
declared as dividends to stockholders. Appropriated retained eamings represent that
portion which has been restricted and, therefore, not available for dividend
declaration.

Treasury Stock

The Company’s shares which are reacquired and held by the Company are deducted
from equity and accounted for at weighted average cost. No gain or loss is
recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issuance or cancellation of the
Company's shares. When treasury shares are sold or reissued subsequently, the
amount received is recognized as an increase in equity, and the resulting surplus or
deficit on the transaction is transferred to or from retained earmings.

Dividends

Dividends are recognized as liability and deducted from equity when approved by the
BOD of the Company. Dividends for the year that are approved after the reporting
date are not obligations and are dealt with as an event after the reporting period
which requires disclosures in the notes to the financial statements.
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Revenue Recognition
Under PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, revenue is recognized on

trade execution date when customer order and payment are sent by the client.

Commission Income
Commissions are recorded on a transaction date basis as securities transaction
occurs. Service fees are recognized when earned.

Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognized in profit or loss when the Company’s right to receive
payment is established.

Inferest Income

Interast income on cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments and interest-
bearing financial assets is recorded taking into account the effective yield of the
asset.

Rent Income
Rent income from operating lease is recognized on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Other Income
Other income is recognized in profit or loss when eamed.

Determination of whether the Company is Acting as a Principal or an Agent
The Company assesses its revenue arrangements against the following criteria to
determine whether it is acting as a principal or an agent:

» whether the Company has primary responsibility for providing the goods and
services; and
= whether the Company has discretion in establishing prices.

If the Company has determined it is acting as a principal, the Company recognizes
revenue on a gross basis with the amount remitted to the other party being
accounted as part of costs and expenses. If the Company has determined it is acting
as agent, only the net amount retained is recognized as revenue.

The Company assessed its revenue arrangements and concluded that it is acting as
principal in all arrangements.

Cost and Expense Recognition

Costs and expenses are recognized in profit or loss upon utilization of the service or
at the date they are incurred. Interest expense is recognized in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred using the effective interest method.

Employee Benefits
Short-term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations, such as those for salaries and wages,
social security contributions, short-term compensated absences, bonuses and non-
monetary benefits, among others, are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided.

Retirement Benefits Costs

The Company's net obligation in respect of the defined benefit plan is calculated by
estimating the amount of the future benefit that employees have earned in the
current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any
plan assets.
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The calculation of DBO is performed on a periodic basis by a qualified actuary using
the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for
the Company, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic
benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains
and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset
ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in OC| and presented
under retirement benefits reserves. The Company determines the net interest
expense on the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount
rate used to measure the DBO at the beginning of the annual period to the then net
defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined liability
during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest
expense and other expenses related to the defined benefit plan are recognized in
profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting
change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is
recognized immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses
on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Leases
The Company has applied PFRS 16, Leases using the modified retrospective

approach and therefore the comparative information has not been restated and
continues to be reported under PAS 17, Leases and |FRIC 4, Determining Whether
an Arrangement Contains a Lease.

The Company as Lessee

At commencement or on medification of a contract that contains a lease component,
the Company allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on
the basis of its relative stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of property the
Company has elected not to separate non-lease components and account for the
lease and non-lease components as a single lease component.

The Company recognizes a right-of-use assetl and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method
from the commencement date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease
transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Company by the end of the lease
term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company will exercise a
purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the
useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis as those of
property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease
liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's
incremental borrowing rate, Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing
rate as the discount rate.
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The Company determines its IBR by obtaining interest rates from various external
financing sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease
and type of the asset leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the
following:

» fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

= variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

= amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee: and

= the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably
certain to exercise, lease paymenis in an optional renewal period if the Company
is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early
termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to terminate
early.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company's estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the Company
changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Short-ferm Leases

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for short-term leases. The Company recognizes the lease payments associated with
these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company as Lessor

At inception or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the
Company allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of their relative standalone prices.

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each
lease is a finance lease or an operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Company makes an overall assessment of whether the
lease transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
the underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then
it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the Company considers certain
indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic life of the
asset,

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head
lease and the sublease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sublease
with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with
reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short-term lease to which the
Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sublease as
an operating lease.
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If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, then the Company
applies PFRS 15, Revenue from Confracts with Customers, to allocate the
consideration in the contract,

The Company applies the derecognition and impairment requirements in PFRS 9 to
the net investment in the lease. The Company further regularly reviews estimated
unguaranteed residual values used in calculating the gross investment in the lease.

The Company recognizes lease payments received under operating leases as rent
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

ncome Taxes

Income taxes comprise current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax are
recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognized in
OCI or directly in equity, in which case they are recognized respectively therein.

The Company has determined that interest and penalties related to income taxes,
including uncertain tax treatments, do not meet the definition of income taxes, and
therefore accounted for them under PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assefs.

Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and
tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted at the end of each
reporting period.

Current tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and
not in profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Final Tax

Final tax is a kind of withholding tax which is prescribed on certain income payments
and is not creditable against the income tax due of the payee on other income
subject to regular rates of tax for the taxable year. Tax withheld constitutes the full
and final payment of the tax due from the payee on the particular income subjected
to final withholding tax.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at
the financial reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes,

Deferred tax, however, is not recognized when it arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit or loss nor taxable profit
or loss,

Deferred tax liabilities are not provided on nontaxable temporary differences
associated with investments in domestic subsidiaries, associates and interest in joint
ventures. With respect to investments in other subsidiaries, associates and interests
in joint ventures, deferred tax liabilities are recognized except when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period
and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. It is probable that
sufficient future taxable profits will be available against which a deductible temporary
difference can be utilized when there are sufficient taxable temporary difference
relating to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity which are
expected to reverse in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference. In such circumstances, the deferred tax asset is recognized in
the period in which the deductible temporary difference arises.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled,
based on tax rate and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized in OCI or directly in equity is recognized in
the statement of other comprehensive income (loss) and statement of changes in
equity and not in profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against current income tax
liabilities and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority and the
Company intends fo settle its current income tax assets and liakilities on a net basis.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional rate of
exchange at the date of transaction.

Foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities of the Company are
translated based on the prevailing Bloomberg Valuation Reference Rates of the
Bankers Association of the Philippines at the reporting date. Income and expenses
are translated based on exchange rates prevailing at transaction dates. Gains or
losses arising from foreign currency transactions and translation of foreign currency-
denominated assets and liabilities are credited to or charged against profit or loss.

Foreign exchange differences arising from revaluation and translation of foreign
currency-denominated assets and liabilities are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the rates change.

Mon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Provisions and Contingencies
A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present

legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that
a transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized as liabilities but are disclosed in the financial
statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources is remote. Contingent
assets are not recognized but are disclosed in the financial statements when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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Related Parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly,
to control or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial
and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject
to commaon control. Related parties may be individual or corporate entities.

Events After the Reporting Period

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company's
financial position at reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial
statements when material. Post year-end events that are not adjusting events, if any,
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when material.

Amendments to Standards |ssued but Not Yet Adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual
periods beginning after January 1, 2021. However, the Company has not early
adopted the following new or amended standards in preparing these financial
statements. Unless otherwise stated, none of these are expected to have a
significant impact on the Company's financial statements.

To be Adopted January 1, 2022

= Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to
PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment). The amendments prohibit an entity
from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment the
proceeds from selling items produced before that asset is available for use.
The proceeds before intended use should be recognized in profit or loss,
together with the costs of producing those items which are identified and
measured in accordance with PAS 2, Inventories.

The amendments also clarify that testing whether an item of property, plant and
equipment is functioning properly means assessing its technical and physical
performance rather than assessing its financial performance.

For the sale of items that are not part of a company's ordinary activities, the
amendments require the company to disclose separately the sales proceeds and
related production cost recognized in profit or loss and specify the line items in
which such proceeds and costs are included in the statement of comprehensive
income. This disclosure is not required if such proceeds and cost are presented
separately in the statement of comprehensive income.

The amendments are effective for annual reporing periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments apply
retrospectively, but only to items of property, plant and equipment made
available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the
financial statements in which the company first applies the amendments.

= Onerpus Contracts - Cost of Fulfiling a Contract (Amendment to PAS 37).
The amendments clarify that the cost of fulfilling a contract when assessing
whether a contract is onerous includes all costs that relate directly to a contract -
i.e. it comprises both incremental costs and an allocation of other direct costs.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2022 to contracts existing at the date when the amendments are first
applied. At the date of initial application, the cumulative effect of applying the
amendments is recognized as an opening balance adjustment to retained
eamings or other component of equity, as appropriate. The comparatives are not
restated. Earlier application is permitted.
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Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2018-2020. This cycle of improvements
contains amendments to four standards. Below is applicable to the Company.

= Fees in the "10 per cent Test for Derecognition of Financial Liabilities
{Amendment to PFRS 9, Financial Instruments). The amendment clarifies
that for the purpose of performing the 10 per cent’ test for derecognition of
financial liabilities, the fees paid net of fees received included in the
discounted cash flows include only fees paid or received between the
borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or lender on the other's behalf,

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2022. Earlier application is permitted.

To be Adopted January 1, 2023

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Noncurrent (Amendments to PAS 1,
Presentation of Financial Statements). To promote consistency in application and
clarify the requirements on determining whether a liability is current or
noncurrent, the amendments:

= removed the requirement for a right to defer settlement of a liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting period to be unconditional and instead
requires that the right must have substance and exist at the end of the
reporting period;

= clarfied that a right to defer settlement exists only if the company complies
with conditions specified in the loan agreement at the end of the reporting
period, even if the lender does not test compliance until a later date; and

» clarified that settlement of a liability includes transferring a company’s own
equity instruments to the counterparty, but conversion options that are
classified as equity do not affect classification of the liability as current or
nancurrent.

The amendments apply retrospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2023. Earlier application is permitted.

In November 2021, the International Accounting Standards Board issued the
Exposure Draft. Moncurrent Liabilities with Covenants, after considering
stakeholder feedback on the December 2020 tentative agenda decision issued
by the IFRS Interpretations Committee about the amendments. The exposure
draft proposes to again amend PAS 1 as follows:

« Conditions which the entity must comply within twelve months after the
reporting period will have no effect on the classification as current or
noncurrent,

= Additional disclosure requirements will apply to noncurrent liabilities subject
to such conditions to enable the assessment of the risk that the liability could
become repayable within twelve months.

* Separate presentation in the statement of financial position will be required
for noncurrent liabilities for which the right to defer settlement is subject to
conditions within 12 months after the reporting period.

¢ The effective date of the amendments will be deferred to no earlier than
January 1, 2024,

Comments on the Exposure Draft was due on March 21, 2022,
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Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to PAS 8, Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors). To clanify the distinction between
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates, the
amendments introduce a new definition for accounting estimates, clarifying that
they are monetary amounts in the financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify the relationship between
accounting policies and accounting estimates by specifying that an accounting
estimate is developed to achieve the objective set out by an accounting policy.
Developing an accounting estimate includes both selecting a measurement
technique and choosing the inputs to be used when applying the chosen
measurement technique. The effects of changes in such inputs or measurement
techniques are changes in accounting estimates. The definition of accounting
policies remains unchanged. The amendments also provide examples on the
application of the new definition.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2023, with earlier application permitted, and will apply prospectively to
changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies occurring
on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period in which the
amendments are applied.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to PAS 1 and PFRS Practice
Statement 2, Making Materiality Judgments). The amendments are intended to
help companies provide useful accounting policy disclosures. The key
amendments to PAS 1 include:

= requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than
their significant accounting policies;

= clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other
evenis or conditions are themselves immateral and as such need not be
disclosed; and

s clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions,
other events or conditions are themselves material to a company's financial
statements.

The amendments to PFRS Practice Statement 2 include guidance and additional
examples on the application of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments are effective from January 1, 2023. Earlier application is
permitted.

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
(Amendments to PAS 12, Income Taxes). The amendments clarify that the initial
recognition exemption does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences such as  leases and
decommissioning cbligations. The amendments apply for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023. Earlier application is permitted.
For leases and decommissioning liabilities, the associated deferred tax assels
and liabilities will be recognized from the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented, with any cumulative effect recognized as an adjustment to
retained eamings or other appropriate component of equity at that date. For all
other transactions, the amendments apply to transactions that occur after the
beginning of the earliest period presented.
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23. Supplementary Information Required Under RR. No. 15-2010 of the BIR

In addition to the disclosures mandated under PFRSs, and such other standards
and/or conventions as may be adopted, companies are required by the BIR to
provide in the notes to the financial statements, certain supplementary information
for the taxable year. The amounts relating to such information may not necessarily
be the same with those amounts disclosed in the financial statements which were
prepared in accordance with PFRSs,

The following is the tax information required for the taxable year ended
December 31, 2021:

A. VAT
1. Qutput VAT P2.322 617
Basis of the Output VAT: Commission
2. Input VAT
Beginning of the year P -
Current year's domestic purchases:
Purchases related condominium units 1,221,388
Services lodged under other accounts -
Claims for tax credit and other adjustment (1,221,388)
Balance at the end of the year P -

B. Withholding Taxes

Tax on compensation and benefits P111,415
Expanded withholding taxes 481,750
Final withhalding taxes 1,152,263

P1,745,428

C. All Other Taxes (Local and National)

Other Taxes During the Year recognized under "Taxes and licenses” Account
under Expenses

The Company paid license and permit fees amounting to P0.12 million for both
the years ending December 31, 2021 and 2020.

D. Tax Cases

As at December 31, 2021, the Company has no deficiency tax assessments
and/or any tax cases.
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R.G. Manabat & Co.

The KPMG Center, 6/F

6787 Ayala Avenue, Makati City
Philippines 1209

Telephone +63 (2) 8885 7000

Fax +63 (2) 8894 1985
Internet www.home.kpmg/ph
Email ph-inquiry@kpmg.com

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
TO ACCOMPANY SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION FOR FILING
WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
R. Coyiuto Securities, Inc.

5th Floor, Corinthian Plaza

121 Paseo de Roxas

Legaspi Village, Makati City

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of R. Coyiuto Securities, Inc.
(the Company), as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 on which we have renderad our
report dated August 15, 2022.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements of
the Company taken as a whole. The supplementary information included in the
Schedules | to VI is the responsibility of the Company’s management.
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The above supplementary information is presented for purposes of complying with the
Securities Regulation Code Rule 52.1 and is not a required part of the Company’s
financial statements. Such supplementary information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the Company's basic financial statements
and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements of the Company taken as a whole,

R.G. MANABAT & CO.

TIRESO RANDY F. LAPIDE
Partner
CPA License No. 0092183
SEC Accreditation No. 92183-5SEC, Group A, issued on July 15, 2021,
valid for one (1) year covering the audit of 2021 financial statements
SEC Accreditation No. 92183-SEC, Group A, issued on April 12, 2022,
valid for five (5) years covering the audit of 2022 to 2026 financial statements
Tax Identification No. 162-411-175
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001987-034-2020
Issued July 20, 2020; valid until July 19, 2023
PTR MNo. MKT 8854069
Issued January 3, 2022 at Makati City

August 15, 2022
Makati City, Metro Manila



SCHEDULE |

R. COYIUTO SECURITIES, INC.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN LIABILITIES
SUBORDINATED TO CLAIMS OF GENERAL CREDITORS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

There are no liabilities subordinated to claims of general creditors.




R. COYIUTO SECURITIES, INC.

SCHEDULE Il

RISK-BASED CAPITAL ADEQUACY WORKSHEET
PURSUANT TO SEC MEMORANDUM CIRCULAR NO. 16

DECEMBER 31, 2021

December 31, 2021

Assets
Liabilities
Equity as per books
Adjustments to Equity per books
Add (Deduct):
Allowance for market decline
Subordinated liabilities
Unrealized gain/(loss) in proprietary accounts
Deferrad income tax
Revaluation reserves
Deposit for future stock subscription (No application with SEC)
Minarity interest

P337,552,316
234,162,307
103,390,009

(1,376,233)

(12,500,000)

Total Adjustments to Equity per books

(13,876,233)

Equity Eligible for Met Liquid Capital 89,513,776
Contingencies and Guarantees
Deduct:

Contingent Liability -

Guarantees or indemnities 3
Ineligible Assets

a. Trading right and all other intangible assets (net) 25,000

b. Intercompany Receivables i

c. Fixed Assets, net of accumulated and excluding those used as

collateral 6,165,773

d. All Other Current Assets 2,556,211

e. Securities Mot Readily Marketable i

f. Megative Exposure (SCCP) -

g. Motes Receivable {non-trade related)

h. Interest and Dividends Receivables outstanding for > 30 days

i. Ineligible Insurance claims

j- Ineligible Deposits &

k. Short Security Differences

. Long Security Differances not resclved prior to sale -

m, Other Assets including Equity Investment in PSE 56,436,319
Total Ineligible Assets 65,183,303
Met Liquid Capital (NLC) 24,330,473
Less:

Operational Risk Reqgt (Schedule ORR-1) 4,149,556

Position Risk Reqt (Schedule PRR-1) 1,919,591

Counterparty Risk {Schedule CRR-1 and detailed schedules) 79

Large Exposure Risk {Schedule LERR-1, LERR-2, LERR-3)

LERR to a single client (LERR-1) &

LERR to a single debt (LERR-2)

LERR to a single issuer and group of companies (LERR-3) -
Total Risk Capital Requirement (TRCR) 6,069,226
Net RBCA Margin (NLC-TRCR) P18,261,246
Forward
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December 31, 2021

Liabilities

Add: Deposit for Future Stock Subscription (No application with SEC)

Less: Exclusions from Aggregate Indebtedness
Subordinated Liabilities
Loans secured by securities
Loans secured by fixed assets
Others

P234,162,207
12,500,000

86,307,070

Total Adjustments to Al

(73,807,070)

Aggregate Indebtedness

P160,355,237

5% of Aggregate Indebtedness P8,017,762
Required Net Liquid Capital (> of 5% of Al or P5M) 8,017,762
MNet Risk-based Capital Excess [ (Deficiency) P16,312,711
Ratio of Al to Net Liquid Capital 659%
RBCA Ratio (NLC / TRCR} 401%
------ SEF w127



SCHEDULE I

R. COYIUTO SECURITIES, INC.
INFORMATION RELATING TO THE POSSESSION OR
CONTROL REQUIREMENTS UNDER SRC RULE 49.2

DECEMBER 31, 2021

Customers’ fully paid securities and excess margin securities not in the broker's or dealer's
possession or control as of the report date (for which instructions to reduce to possession or
control had been issued as of the report date but for which the required action was not taken
by respondent within the time frame specified under SRC Rule 49.2):

Market Valuation: MIL
MNumber of tems: MIL

Customers'- fully paid securities and excess margin securities for which instructions to
reduce possession or control had not been issued as of the report date, excluding items
arising from "temporary lags which result from normal business operations” as permitted
order SRC Rule 49.2:

Market Valuation: MIL
MNumber of ltems: MIL




R. COYIUTO SECURITIES, INC.

SCHEDULE IV

COMPUTATION FOR DETERMINATION OF
RESERVE REQUIREMENTS UNDER SRC RULE 49.2

DECEMBER 31, 2021

Particulars Credit Debit
1. Free credit balance and other cradit balance in

customers' security accounts P48,118,120
2. Monies borrowed collateralized by the securities

carried for the account of customers z
3. Monies payable against customers’ securities loaned. -
4. Customers' securities failed to receive 80,318,360
5. Customer balances in firm accounts which are

attributable to principal sales to customer. -
6. Market Value of stock dividends, stock splits and

similar distributions receivable outstanding over

30 calendar days old -
7. Market Value of the short security count differences

over 30 calendar days old -
8. Market Value of short securities and credits (not to be

offset by long or by debits) in all suspense accounts

over 30 calendar days -
8. Market Value of securities which are in transfer in

excess of 40 calendar days and have not been

confirmed to be in transfer by the transfer agent or the

issuer during the 40 days -
10. Debit balances in customers' cash or margin accounts

excluding unsecured accounts and accounts doubtful

of collection P98,231,392
11. Securities borrowed to effectuate short sales by

customer and securities borrowed to make delivery on

customers' securities failed to deliver -
12. Failed to deliver customers’ securities not older than

30 calendar days. 2,698,647
13. Others -
Total P128,436,480 P100,930,039
Met Credit (Debit) 27,506,440
Required Resarve (100% of net credit if making a weekly
computation and 105% if monthly) P27,506,440




SCHEDULE V

R. COYIUTO SECURITIES, INC.

A REPORT DESCRIBING ANY MATERIAL INADEQUACIES
FOUND TO EXIST OR FOUND TO HAVE EXISTED
SINCE THE DATE OF THE PREVIOUS AUDIT
DECEMEBR 31, 2021

There were no matters involving the Company's internal control structure and its operations
that were considered to be materal weaknesses.
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SCHEDULE VI

R. COYIUTO SECURITIES, INC.

RESULTS OF MONTHYL SECURITIES COUNT
CONDUCTED PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 52.1-10, AS AMENDED,
AS OF THE DATE OF THE STATEMENT OF THE FINANCIAL CONDITION
IN THE ANNUAL AUDITED FINANCIAL REPORT
DECEMBER 31, 2021

There is no discrepancy in the results of the securities count conducted. Please refer to the
attached summary,



SCHEDULE Vil

R. COYIUTO SECURITIES, INC.

INVENTORY REPORT BY LOCATION -SUMMARIZED
DECEMBER 31, 2021

cone STOCK NAME VAULT tm:“ hnreian PEO 53.13;"3 ‘b‘ﬁf‘? % *R;GE}"’,;,';LUE
260 260 GROUF, ING - . - 133,401 133,401 TH 1015162
ROS0E  BOGO0 HOLDWNGS - SERIES B PREF - . z a7.600 ATEDD BEED £.740,560
RIOOF OG0 HOLDWNGS - SERIES A PREF z . . 20.000 0000 10800 2020,000
AMA  ASIA AMALGAMATED HLDGS : - - 175,500 175,500 161 262 558
AR ATOK BIG WEDSE GO ; ; : 108, 66l 108,660 B8 15243
ABA ABASORE CAPITAL HLOGE  IHC. L - - 5,286,200 5 256,200 052 4 335,704
ARG AEMBEST GROUP " C " 631,000 a31,000 B0 I T2 M0
ABS ABRE.CEN CORPORATION E E g 281,171 251,17 12.R0 I 582 TRE
ABSF  ABS-CEN FLOGS CORP P : . - 36,500 36500 1182 435,080
AC AYALA CORFORATION : 2 220 160,204 160424 B3100 140751, 344
ACE  ACESTE (FHILS ) HOTEL CORP - - - 586,350 565,350 1.68 573,341
ACEN  AC ENERGY CORPORATION : ; - 2,180,177 8180177 1100 100,981 947
ACEX  ACE EMEXOR INC i E : 130,512 A2 a000 4580480
ACPB1  AYALA CORP. PREF. B-1 . ; . 445760 AMETED 51200 28 729 120
ACH ALSOKNE CONS RES | INC . . . 13,142 000 13142 000 120 15770400
ACVP AYALA CORP, VOTIMG FREF 24577 9 - - 24537 a.nn (1]
AEV  ABOITIZ ECAITY VENTURES, ING. : - : 21031 EFI0H1 5445 26,370,138
AGI  ALLINCE GLOBAL, INC : : : 1360600 1IN 1180 16,161,280
ALCO  ARTHALAND CORPORATION . . . 3375 T3 ITEEI 064 1,50 444
ALCPD  ARTHALAND CORP.SERIES D PREF : - : G400 BAND S13.00 3,263,200
ALHI  ANCHOR LAND HLDGS.ING - : : .900 BaSl A1 365,148
ALI  AYALA LAND, INC . 5 1a7T B 500 fELET 36T a7 118,297
ALWP  AYALA LAND. INC. VOTING PREF. 2a7.027 : - : 2 am :
ALLDY  ALLDAY MARTS, iNG. v - . 18,015,000 1BHS00 0s1 10,588,150
ALLHC ATALALAHD LOGISTICS g ] L 3,08 900 3,08 S0 B3 20,317 457
HLOGS CORF.
AN AGRINURTURE, INC : = E 503,400 03400 498 2,506,532
AMS A SORIAND CORP . = . 562,943 SE2 043 745 4,628,007
AP ABOITIZ POWER CORP. : : L 366,500 0500 2870 11,776,080
APBIR  AYALA CORP.CLASS B-PREF - - - il B0 B4 1400 £13,677,480
APC  APC GROUP, INC. : L = 12,000,470 12000470 0z 2,640,323
APL  APOLLO GLOBAL CAPITAL, ING. ' i : 184807800 184507800 008 12,360,624
APD AHGLD PHIL. HLDES Coas. " ] v 1,320,036 1,320,036 k= 1] 1,188,032
AP ALTUS PROFPERTY VEWTURES, INC. L ) v 45061 45061 1534 1 038,480
AFE AFEX MIMING CO., IRC - 9 . A ETRIAES 3A67TRA5S 161 5.821.830
AR AERA MNG B IND, CORP : . - 1I5R3IN00C 1955330000 .00 5.314,516
ARA  ARANETA FROF. MIC . : < 2,500 AREE0E 0T 470,844
AREIT  AREIT. MG - : = 26,500 2500 ABED 1,365,100
AT ATLAS CONS. MMG. 5 DEVT. - : 3 3,881,538 3981538 BT 24,506,096
AT ASAM TERMBIALS, INC. . : : 123,564 123,864 14.00 1,724 B
ATH AT HOLDINGS, INC. A" . - : 1261, 200 1281200 0a8 a9 568
ATHE.  ATN HOLOINGS, INC. B : = - 616,800 16,800 141 243,804
AUl ASA UHITED BANK CORP " 3 . A48 51418 4335 2223699
AL AXELLM RESDURCES CORP. E " . 2365000 Z 3R5. Y 3nn T 005,000
=i BEMGUET CORF. "A” . B s 305,524 305,524 =10 1558172
BCR  BENGUET CORF, "B° . - . 22437 22437 a8 108,585
BCOR  BERJAYA PHIL, INC. 2 = : 42600 az600 7.0 8200
BGO  BO0 UNIBANK, ING. - - - 196,785 196,785 12070 3751850
BEL BELLE CORPORATION - 3 : 3.544,480 3544483 198 4 A 066
BF  BANCO FILSAVINGS & MORTGAGE : — - 3064 3,064 .00 '
BFC BANCO FILIPING - CONVERTELE g v . 58 L | o.on -
PREF
BHI  BOULEVARD PROP. HLDGS. INC. 3 z - 166520000 196,920,000 .06 12405 360
BKR BRIGHT KINDLE RES. & INV, INC. - - - 255500 255,500 1.68 473240
BLFI  BDOLEASING AND FINANCE, NG ‘ - : 721720 721720 116 2.780.635
BLOOM BLOOWBERRY RESORTS CORP. B g 0 1,631,500 1,631,500 7.3 A0 FTE 450
Ba BOGD MEDELLIN MILLMG GO, INC. 5 . E a5 a5 61,00 [ ]
BFl  BANS OF THE FHL ISLANDS . . . FED 434 GEIA3E D245 B2 578 443
BRM A BROWN COMPANY, INC. - - - 5021375 5021375 074 2,56 886
BRMP & BROVMN CO. INC. SERIES & PREF ; : : 10,000 WOHN 10500 1,060,000
BEC  BASIC EMERGY CORP. . ‘ . 20,362 202 e 04 12T A4
1 +] CHELSEA LDGISTICS HLDGS CORP 1 - " 3,151,000 2,151,000 1 .66 5230 680
(=1} COMCRETE AGGREGATES CORP g = s 1950 1850 4175 81413
CAB  CONCRETE AGGREGATES - - - 5500 5500 5500 0 400
CAL  CALATA CORPORATIIN : - : 3619320 IEWEN 204 7,751,413
CAT  CENTRAL AZUCARERA DE TARLAC, = - £ 36120 WX 130 468 560
[l A
CEC  COSMOS BOTTLING CORP 3 . 4400 - 4400 000 o
Foraand
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ghok RTOCkMAME ) HOUSE OFFICE Fen SHARES VALUE  MARKET VALUE
COC CITYLARD DEV, CORF = .. = 56 856 ik A5G 073 435705
CEB~  CEBU AIR, ING, - - - 56,020 58,020 4215 2445543
CEBCP  CEBU AIR, INC. CONVERTIBLE FREF - - - 6,860 6,860 4450 ez
CEl  CROMNEQUITIES, INC. 3 ] o 42.528,838 42.528,838 R A A, 444, 558
CEU  CENTROESCOLAR LML, ING. : . . 508 L] 652 5500
CH  CEBL HOLOINGS, ING . . . B33 A18 B33 618 612 3,877,742
CHE  CHINA BANKING CORF e - . 2,495,202 495 282 600 B4,B77.332
CH?  CEMEX HOLDINGS FHILS., INC, - - - B, 304 352 8,304 352 105 8,718,510
CiIC  CONCERCION INDUSTRIAL CORP & - - 25,300 25,500 2045 817,285
CLI  CEBU LANDMASTERS, INC. . . - 1108275 1,08 278 1o 3,324 85
CHPF  CENTURY PACIFIC FDOD, INC . - 110,100 110,100 2675 3,220,425

CHVAG - CONVERGE INFD AND COMM TECH ] . . AR 500 RS, 500 350 15,467 450

COAL  COaL ASLA HOLDINGS, INC, - - - 14,656 000 14, 656 000 027 3,684,440

COL COL FINANCIAL GROUF, N, = - - TR0 TOU000 445 200,500

COSCD COSCOCAPITAL, T, = - - TOT0ET 7,070,307 520 36,765,556

CRG  CENTURY PROPERTIES GROUP, - - - 14,347 &0 14,227 &1 (.40 8,738,148
L.

CPM  CENTURY PEAK HLDGS CORF. £ - - 3.201,000 3,201,000 2.54 BA10,840

CROWN  CROWN ASIA CHEMICALS CORP. - - - 1,012,000 1,01 2000 1.68 1,710,280

CEB  CITYETATE SAVINGS BANK * 3 = B, 540 8,840 ra 2,513

CYBR  CYBER BAY CORPORATION - * e 34,447 B0 34,447 200 0.33 11,567, 708

DO DOUBLEDRAGON PROPERTIES . . a8, TE0 a6, 780 7.26 6,510,405
CORP,

COMFR - DOMP REIT, INC. + - - 10,245,000 10,245,000 1.78 18.538.550
DOPR DOUBLEDRAGON PROP. PREF SHS - - - Bg. 700 48,700 100.70 9052, 180
DELM  DEL MONTE PACIFIC LIMITED - - 1,608 1,609 15.82 956,172
DFMM DIVERSIFED FINL. METWORK, ING. ! . . 305, U0 305,600 2.45 748,720
DETL  OKGITAL TELECOM FHIL.ING . . . 16,000 16,000 .00 ]

DITG GITO CME HOLDINGS CORP : . . 5912 528 9,512,528 505 50058771
DiZ  DIEON COPFER SILVER MIMES, INC - - - 907 680 ST 600 480 4435604
DRC DG HOLDINGS. INC. =+ - - 3.763,900 3,763,800 7 9010660
Cany DM OWENCESLAD AND A550.INC = - - 1,065,500 1.065.500 878 TER0B0
DMA - PHLAB HOLDINGS CORP - . = TraaE0 Ta.080 258 XN 160
DRL D& L INDUSTRIES, INC. 3 = = T5.000 TS0 945 ToRERTS0
CWs  ECOVERY WORLD CORP. = - - E25.000 28000 1480 1,125,000
EAGLE  EAGLE CEMENT CORPORATION = ] o a7 050,000 37.0%0,000 1480 B40, 500,000
ECP  EASYCALL COMRL = = = 118610 V18610 420 458, 162
PHILS. NG COMMONT
EEl  EEICORFORATION = = - T80T 718075 650 A, BET 458
EEIP4  EEI CORPORATION SERIES & PREF : - 5 6000 6000 .00 G, 000
EEIFE  EEI CORPORATION SERIES B PREF = + - 0,000 10,000 10750 1,075,000
EG  IP E-GAME YENTURES INC = . - 338,200,000 338, 200,000 om 3,188 480
Eiks  EXPORT & D, BANK, INC. = % = 3,484 32 1484 552 .00 o
EIBR  EXPORT & IND BANK B # = = TO0, 000 TO0, 000 oo o
ELI  EMPIRE EAST LAMD HLOGS. MC. . - . 6,BET, 157 G,E&T, 157 076 1,705,225
EMF EMPERADOR NE . . . 118,800 118,600 I0ED 2,474,040
EURD  EURCMED LAB, PHILS. . . ! 1,483,032 1,183,002 140 1,656,745
EVER EVI:EH-GIJTESGUHF.& & HLDGE, 5] = - 11,556,000 11,556,000 033 3827.340
EW  EAST WEST BANKING CORP - - - 4,213,904 4,213,604 500 40,483,574
FAF FIRET ABACLE FIN. HLDGS ] = = 100, 000 00, DOG 07z 12,000
FB SAM MIGLEL FOOD AND ] = = 04, 520 106,220 Tdn 7605528
BEVERAGE. INC.
FOC  FILINVEST CEVT CORP. Z E T 215444 215,444 i 1,658,618
FERRD  FERROMOUX HOLDHMGS, IMC %] - = 8035713 B.BAS T3 332 20,666,507
FEU FAR EASTERN UNIVERSITY - - - 8,574 8,674 S40.00 1,388, 560
FFI FILIPRG FURND, INC. 2] 5 T 17,112 17092 .82 111,570
FGEN FIRET GEN CORP. ] = = 1027 452 1,027 48 2r.88 28614538
FGENG FIRET GEN CORP. SERES G PREF. = = - 1,016,260 1,016,260 102800 104 674, TR
FHE  FIL-HISPANG CORP 35,000 . - - 5000 .00 [
FILRT  FILINVEST REIT CORF, . . . 441,000 41,000 7,40 3,263,400
FIP F & JPRINCE HLDGS CORP, - - - 165,000 165,000 2.60 428,000
FIFE F & J PRINCE HLDGS CORF. "E™ - - - 38.000 38,000 2.61 08,160
FLI FILINVEST LAND T, - - - 3.520.145 3,520,145 110 JAT2160
FMETF FIRET METRO PHIL. EQUITY ] - T 22 2 108.30 2,383
EXCHANGE
FMIC FIRST METRD INVET, CORF, - - - 11,500 11,500 0,00 S20.000
FHI  GLOBAL FERRONICKEL HLDGS, BC - - c 1.528.720 1,520.729 215 2807
FooD .:uL'!:J.ﬂ.NII'.E SELECT FOODS INTL.. - - = T AT rar.rar 0.58 470,70
FPH FIRST PHIL. HOLDINGS - = x 5,524 OE5. 524 7005 67 634,056
FPI FORLM FACIFIC, INC, ] - - 373075 ITA207E 027 i3 000
FRIAT  FRUNTAS HOLDINGS, INC - - - 1,540,000 1,840,000 122 2354 800
FYdN  FILSYH CORP.“a* ] = - s s am ]
GEBO  GEOGRACE RES. PHLE., INC. ] - . 24011 283 2a011,283 a8 4.370,054
GERI  GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTE, INC. . . . BEE5117 BEE 117 101 M. OTH
GLO  GLOBE TELECOM, ING ] - - 6.284 6284 3E2M 20 ETS A8
GMAT  GMA NETWORE, INC - - - 2663100 Z663,100 1384 BEBST 304
GMAP  GMA HOLDINGS, INC. "PDA" - - - #3200 1300 1314 1,758,754
G0 GOTESCO LAND, INC."A® * = - 54 527 B 227 k] a
GOB GOTESSO LAND, INC B . . 59 984 A% A5 00a ]
GREEN  GREEMNERGY HOLDINGS. ING - - - 1678073 1678.873 228 3,528,058
Fovwand
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CODE STOCK NAME vaur O e L SHARES  'VALUE  MARKETVALUE
GSMI GREBRA SAN MIGLEL INC. L - . 1z900 3zA00 T13ED JESZ.A80
GTCAP  GT CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC. - ! - 3.5 23580 SADOO 12 854,060
GTCAPYP  GT CAPITAL HOLDINGS - VOTING 8820 . - - BB 0.0 Q
FREF
GTFPA  GT CAPITAL HLDGS., INC A - - B 00 00 5500 .50
GTPPE  GT CAPITAL HLDGS,, IMC 8B - . - AT A5 47455 1.000.00 47495000
HI  HOUSE OF INVESTMENT B - - 63,000 Ba.000 348 18,240
HLCM - HOLCIM PHILIPFINES, INC. - - - 574 B5T 574,857 882 8 x|
HOME  ALL HDME CORP, - - - 126,000 224,000 B34 2,735140
HOUSE BS990 HOLDINGS, IMC. - * s ELE] 35000 1128 354,600
HVN  GOLDEN MY HOLDINGS, INC. - - . 2,100 2100 540,00 1,434,000
I I-HREMIT, INC. . - s 1448625 1448625 0.83 1,202,359
ICT  INTL. CONTAINER TERML SERV. v - ki) 154030 T (B4 200,00 TEA16,BOD
D ITALFRAL DEVELDFMENT CORP, = - - 1,042,743 042 T4 12 1,281,749
Ml INTEGRATED MICRO- - - - 107,166 07, e 840 505,234
ELECTROMICE, G,
NP IMPERIAL RES., INC. "A~ . - - 802500 02500 141 1.272.826
ION  ONICS, INE. . - - 2,552 700 & 52 00 orz 2,053,544
PN PW HOLDMNGS, ING - - - A3 500 43500 TO5 307,380
F  PEQFLE, INC. - - - 128197 199,157 -1 -] 03,087
KL FHIL INFRADEYV HOLDINGS IHC 38000 - - &7, 120095 47,167 085 112 52827 146
15 GSLAND INFORMATION & TECH. INC . - . 30,455 000 30,455 000 04 4 3R5,520
I5M ESM COMMUNICATIONS . - B - - 1L o
Jas JACKETOMES. INC . - = 222,00 222.000 174 356 250
JFC JOLLIBEE FOODS CORF . - - 232747 232,747 21840 50,366 451
JECPA JOLLIBEE FODDS CORF PREF-& - - - 2,400 2400 1,000.00 2,400,000
JFCPE. JOLLIBEE FOQQRS CORF PREF-B8 = - - g T 38,170 1.003.00 38254510
JGE JG SUMKMET HOLDINGS, INC. - - - oy nraor EL00 16817 I
205 JOLLIVILLE HLDGS. CORF - - - 8,500 8,500 545 46 5T
KEEPR  THE KEEPERS HOLDINGS, INC. . . . 4,584 GED 4,584,560 1.32 6051 619
KEF  KEPPEL PHLPROP., IMC. . - . 122 446 122,448 am 368 562
KPH  KEPPEL PHIL. HLDGS "&° . . . 5584 5.684 610 METZ
KPHE  KEPPEL PHIL. HLDGE B . B = FME 28 f.12 12355
KPPl KEPWEALTH PROPERTY PHILS. ING s - - 434,300 134 300 2.83 Jag, 0ea
LAND  CITY AND LAND DEVELOPERS, ING E - - TdE 043 TR O3 LiR:L] 636, E0Z
LBC  LBCEXPRESS HOLDINGS, BT - - - A0 a0 24495 5580
LE  LEPANTOGCONS. MNG, A" - - - 311,502 843 311,902 843 014 43 GEE, 353
LCE  LEPANTD CONS. MNG. 8" - - - 20,557,140 20967 140 013 2.B0%.557
LFM LIBERTY FLOUR MILLS, ING - - - 28580 28,980 065 508,437
L8 LIBERTY TELECQMS, INC, - - 200,000 - 200 000 155 32,000
LM LWG CHEMICALS CORP. = = - B3 000 B3 000 400 Jiz.oon
LODE  LODESTAR . HLDGE CORP - - - 6,248 000 B, 348,000 Q&S 3,836,240
LOTO  PACIFIC CMLINE SYSTEMS ] - - 1,037,200 1.037.200 174 1.804,728
LPZ  LOPEZ MOLDINGS CORP. . a - 2,520,765 2,530 65 am 7,333,871
LR LEISURE & RESORTS CORP. . = - 2.753.770 2753770 149 4,103,117
L5C  LORENIOSHFFING CORP - - - 144,250 a2 [HL= 1] 123,825
LTE LT GROUP, NG, - - - 861,790 BE1 70 .00 9,520,929
WA BAMNILA MINBG CORP.A™ - - - S0, 366 454 B20,300, 454 {11+ 10,124,053
MAEH  MAMILA MINMG CORP, 8" - - - G012, 081 336,012,681 0.04 3,360,127
MAC  MACROASLA CORP, - - - 34,787 214,757 %1 15608,212
MACAY  MACAY HOLDINGS, INC, - - - 188,301 188,301 0.00 a
BaH  METRO ALLIANCE HLDGS "A° - - . 16, 452 116,452 0.0} a
MAHE  METRO ALLIANCE HLDGS 8 - - - 129,097 128.087 0.0 a
MARC  MARCVENTURES HLDEE . G, - . - 1.881,62% 1,881,622 1.7 2201 488
MAXS — MAK'S GROUP. INC. - . . 28,000 368,000 .40 2514240
B MANEA BULLETI PUB, CORP - - - 380606 368,606 042 151 B
MEC  MANILA BROADCASTRNG COMPANY o - - 3700 3,700 4.8 35187
MET  METROPOLITAN BANK AND TRUST = - 41370 2434161 247840 S8.70 137 B8, 507
G
MED  MEDCO HOLDINGS, INC. - - = ER=cchilig 4,683,000 a3 7,404,900
MEDNC ~ MEDLINES DISTRIBUTORS IMC. . . - 1, 776000 1.775.000 120 2285750
MEG  MEGAWODRLD PROPERTIES E - - BEVE207 Q618207 318 0297 62
MER  MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY = - B0 BT MZE32 435,450 Fa5.20 127,987,097
WMFC  MANLILIFE FINARCIAL CORP - - - 42T 4370 SN 4,044,555
KFIN - MAKATI FINARCE CORP. - - - &3 968 53,968 251 134,530
G MILLERNIUM GLOBAL HLDGS., MG, - - - 20,583,000 20 983,000 R} 3336\
MGH  WMETRO GLOBAL HLDGE CORP. - . . 212,100 1200 ki ] o
WHC MABUHAY HOLDINGS CORP, “ - B 3955304 3625 504 038 1,488,715
MJC MANILA JOCKEY CLLSE, BC . s = 2MES A5 182 420, 083
MJIE WS INVESTMENT CORP - - - 85 200 =21 ] 118 114 BES
MM MERRYMART COMSLUMER CORF - - - 1672500 1 ETE 00 25 4157473
KON MONDRAGON INTL. PHIL, INC. - - . 5,700 656 5T 656 Qo0 1]
MCOHDE MOMDE MIZSIMN CORP. - - . 397 400 357 400 1620 4,437, BED
MPC WETRO PACIFIC CORP . - - e ] i oD 1
MP1 WETRS PACIFIC INVE. CORP - - - 14,0524, 700 14,524 108 3.0 B0, 206, 365
MRC  WARC ALLED, INC - - - 21, Thi B0 21, Te0 B0 0 5,556 69
MREIT  WREIT. ING. - - - 4 848, 700 4, B4E, 700 1T 05,475,550
MRSG h'IErHCI-R‘EMIL STORES GROUP, - + = 1,003,000 1, H13, 000 A4 1,444,320
L.
MUE  MABUHAY VINYL CORF - - - 236,024 23,024 4.28 1,010,183
MW MANILA WATER CO., INC - - - 400 200 483, 200 2475 11,058,200
Forward'
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CODE ATOLH N vt CLEIRES  ToFRICE EED SHARES  VALUE MARKET VALUE
MWICE  MEGAWDE COMSTRLCTION CORF P : . a0 412 WAz ANl 1,562,254
ATNFIE MEGAWIDE COMS.CORP, SERIES 28 - - . A6 &7 46 8570 o 5] & B6YBES
VP4 MEGAWIDE COMS CORP SERIESA E = Fieky =5} 20 050 0030 2024054
W MIHAD MINERAL RES, ING s . . 2,802,400 2,807,400 10 2BHEATT
KL MICKEL ASIA CORPORATICH - = = 5,452,524 SABZGZ4 53§ 28,307 143
HN  NEGROS MAVISATION CO., ING ; - - 203,367 WIIET 00 i
NOW  WOW CORPORATION - 3 : 8,474,100 8,411, 100 129 12217718
MACE  MATIONAL REMSURANGE CORP ; : 1,640,000 1E40000 oEn 484000
WXGEN  MEXTGEMESIS CORPORATION - . - 406,000 aEH0R 0oo 0
OM  OMICD CORPORATION - E - 3.480,200 IAII0 035 1204118
OFM  ORIENTAL PET. & MIN. "A" - - - AMEMM5IEE  ANEMEZEE 001 47 308,408
OFMBE  ORIEMTAL PET & MIN. "B - ; - B0IRABLMZ  SOIRIBLMZ G0 55,145,111
ORE  ORIENTAL PEMIMSLLA RES. ; : 3,284,700 1284700 078 2 564 666
ay THE PHLOCRILL CORP. " g " 253 008 457 258 008 457 o 2530085
P& PACIFICA HOLDANGS, INC B g " 3H1 850 381,850 iz 1222240
PAL  PAL HOLDWMGS, INC : - : 511,355 511355 GOS 3093698
PAX  PAXYS, INC. - ; : 172,600 172,600 163 251358
PEE  PHLEPME BUSINESS BANK ; : : 244,542 4484 10.00 2448620
PBC  PHL. BAMK OF COMM : 5 = 8260 B260 1TA4B 144 588
PCOR  PETROM CORPORATION ; E 6000 12075,810 12081800 347 0 330
PGP FICOF RESOURGES, ING . . . 17054 654 17,054,654 000 a
FECE  PMOC EXFLORATICN CORFE - . . 2,500 2500 4000 100000
PERC  PETROENERGY RES CORP. : - . I ATT TITHTT 400 2911508
PGOLD  PLREGOLD PRICE CLUB, INC : - : 126600 126600 3830 A BT5 360
PHA  PREMIERE HORIZON ALLIANCE : : : 3486000 3.486.000 0.56 1.052 160
CORF
PHZ PHILCORASAT HLDG CORP . ] ) 221 968 21 964 1.4 o
FHES  PHIL ESTATES CORF : : 2 7.275.000 TITS000 A5 ATI0250
PHY  PHINMA CORPORATION : z : 45122 45122 HAS 505,308
FHR  PHRESORTS GROUP HLDGS, INC - = - 7,309,060 ZI0U0E0 078 1,801,067
PIZZA  SHAKEYS PIZZA ASIA VENTLRES : : z 167500 A0 1010 1.657.750
HC
PLG PREMILSY LEISURE CORP. " ) B BES 300 B BE&5 00l 143 3,811,950
FRFC  PANASDMIC MFG, PHILS, DORF : . . 142,600 HZEN AW BEE.FOD
FMT  PRIMETOVM FROF . INC : A E 3HT4E 3FTEE0 00D ]
P8 PHIL MATICHAL BANK - : = 566,321 wE3ET 2000 15,825,052
PHC  PHIL NATL. CONST. CORF. : - X A48 WIME a0 0
PhK  PHOEMIX PET PHLS. - - - 811,507 B80T 1086 0,817,340
PAXES  PHOEMIX PET. PHLS -SERIES 18 : g : 5700 STO0 24D 583,681
Phikd  PHOEMEX PET. PHLS -SERIES 4 : - e 5700 ET0C SGE0D 5,508,600
PORT  GLOBALPORT 200, INC. - = 8,700 B.700 73 aB 510
PRC  PAYCE CORPORATION ‘ - ‘ 141,570 Mgt o o
BBl FHILTOWMN PROFERTIES, INC. : 1200 ‘ G200 000 0
PRLC FHIL RACINEGE CLUB, ING. 5 ) " 1,70 10,700 T8I H3.4RD
FRF3A  FETRON CORF-FERF. FREF 534 3 : . 260,700 ZEOTOC 1,000 260,700,000
P
PRFIS  PETRON CORP-PERP. PREF 538 . + = 280,550 280,560 1,118.00 13,535,450
PRIM  FRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS : : - 553, 606 553,500 117 4,478
PRIME  ERIMEX CORPORATION - i E &17,000 &iT000 218 56,550
=551 FHILIPPINE SAVINGS BAMNK . - - 120,806 120,800 BE 50 H813,10%
FEE THE FHL STOLK EXCHAMGE, IMG. g g 34,871 34,871 500 T A48T 268
F1C PHIL, TRUST COMEANY ) B4 [==11] 1B 00 75,520
FTT  FHIL TELEGRAPH & TEL CORF . 1000 11,531,267 11,532,281 0o 0
Fx  PHILEX MINING CORS : : z +200.514 420054 545 23,385,481
FXP  PHP EMERGY CORPORATION : s - 2 656,563 2HSESES BAS 16,337.82
RCE  RIZAL COMM BAMNKING CORP. : 2 H 243,245 243245 2000 4,864,600
RCI ROKAS & COMPANY, INC, - - - 1.663,036 16083,036 0.8 1,083 571
BCR AL COMMERCIAL REIT. BIC. . 3 : 280,000 280,000 181 2,130,800
REG  REPUBLIC GLASS HLOGS CORE, ‘ : ; 84,867 aa867 am0 134,301
RFH BFM CORPORATION = = - 2541, 710 2841, 710 4.87 1M H615615
RLC ROBINSONS LAND CORF 0 B = a37 B2 &37 . A02 1930 12245798
RLT  FHILREALTY & HLDGS CORP - - . 5.£82,025 S4RZ035 0@ 1,107,368
ROCK  ROCKWELL LAND CORP L « . 512,564 512,064 148 TEILIET
ROX  ROMAS HOLDANGS, INC. : z E 358,148 358,148 1.04 24T
BPC  REYNOLDS PHILS. CORS : " : 2227 B3 2227 831 .00 a
REHI  ROBINGONS RETAIL HLDGS. INC. ; < - 62,310 62310 G540 4075074
AWM TRAVELLERS INTL. HOTEL GROLUP, . ; 18,000 10,000 faz 54200
INC.
585  SBS PHLPPINES CORP. : 5 : #4648 4,648 381 174 566
SCC SEMIFARA MINING ARD POVER : = : 705820 TOEI20 2108 15,082 722
CORP
SECE  SECURITY BAMNK CORP. - - : 137 4T 13T 1800 16415603
SEVN  PHAL. SEVEM CORPORATION ; 2 - 3146 3046 BE.0O 276 548
SF| SWIFT FOODS, INC. - - - 38,162,040 18,162,040 040 2 968 442
SFIP SWIET FOODS, INC. CONVERTIBLE : - : 2482 2a 822 150 Tam
541 SOLID GRALUP, INC, B 0 3,631,000 3631000 1.08 3971 &R0
5GP SYNERGY GRID & DEVT FHLS MG . . 2,500,000 37 .610.980 40010880 1347 75 256,058
SHLPH  PILPINAS SHELL PETROLEUM : E - 60070 WOO70 186E 5170182
SHNG  SHANG FROPERTIES, ING . . . 1083318 4083318 251 7 BT 460
SAF  SUM LIFE FINANGIAL ING 3 . 2 1382 1382 2.7RR.00 3853016
5L 5TA LUCIA LAND, MG - - : 54000 B4 000 266 23820
Ennwant
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CLEARING  TRANSFER TOTAL MARKET TOTAL

o BTCCH NAME YT HOUSE OFFICE iy SHARES  VALLUE MARKET VALUE
S SM INVESTMENTS CORP, - - - 9877 ageTy B30 3T EDE 31
S, SAN MIGLUEL BREWERY, INC - - - 18,7040 18,700 2935 &FF20
SMC SaH MIGLEL CORP. - - 51,455 6,000 218 ¥.04a1,673 194.50 B0 OaE 20
SMC2F SWIC SERIES2 PREF &-2F - - - 350,600 388,600 TE.30 31,210,350
SMCIH SMC SERIESZ PREF.5-2H - - - 184,600 184 630 TE.0O 14 0 w00
SMCZI SMC SERIES2 PREF.5-2| - - - 256,300 256,300 TRES Pl ]
SMICZF  SMC SERIES2 PREF S-2) - - - Ta5, 700 TH5. 00 TE.50 60,106 050
SMCIK S0 SERIES2 PREF.5-2K - - - 1,451,300 1,451,300 0.0 [}
SMPH  SM PRIME HOLOINGS, INC . . - 2,133 364 2,133,364 3350 T2321 040
E0C SOCREGDURCES, INC = L a Z2.543,000 Z543.000 ez 1. 7EE 660
SPC SPC POYWER CORFPORATION - - gl 96 600 95 600 13.56 135538
SPM  SEAFRONT RES CORP - - “ prederg] e am 045 654
SPHEC SOLAR PHILS MUEYA ECLIA CORP. - - - 1,094,000 .00 000 1.28 8,400,330
55| 8 GROUP, INC. - - - 1,193,600 1,155 600 1.12 A, 3068 512
S5P SFA SEMICON PHILS. CORP. - - - 1,644 000 1,544 000 1.10 1, BOE 400
ETI ST EDUCATION SYSTEMS HLDGEE | . . - 4,713,400 4,713,400 0.34 4, E02, 558
INC
ST STEMIEL MFG. CORP. - - - 1,160,905 1,189,905 0400 13
STR WEETAMALLS, INC, - - - 1, 3TEE65D 1, 375650 in2 B11T 498
i SUMTRUST HOME DEVELOPERS " g = 2 28 585 2 EZL AN 1.12 2 540, 7ET
Soa SANITARY WARES MFG. CORS n g ) 4, 5F2 300 1,522 300 oaad 1]
T THC METALS CORF. - - s 171,000 1,769,000 oTa 1,373,580
TRGI TRAWSFPACIFIC BROADEAND - - - 3755000 3,755,000 03 1,126,500
TCBED CETEK HLDGS PHLS. SUBSERIES - - - 23.000 23000 5340 1,174, B0
Fd
TECH CRTEK HILDORGS PHLS. CORP ® . ) 3505423 3505423 am 13,230,525
TECHW CRTEK HLDGS PHLE "WARRANT - B - A58, 504 458,504 0as 428,713
TEL PHIL, LOMNG DS TEL, GO - - - B0, 74T BOLT4T  1EAF 00 146,313,564
TFH TOF FRONTER INV, HLDGS., ING = = - 431,364 431,364 1T T 55,085,183
TUGS HARBOR STAR SHIPPING SRVCE. - - - 2,240,000 2,240,000 =R} ] 2,038,400
INC,
ugs UMIDM BAME OF THE PHILS = " 42 BaF 165,705 198,297 9550 18,730,552
(1] 5 UMICE. RES & HLDGS N = " g 8,414,500 414,500 0Es 2069967
e UNMYVERSAL RIGHTFIELD PROP = 3 v 189,757 776 18,797 776 [FRn ] o
e LUWITED PARAGDMN MKG.CORP, - - - 181,513,650 181 51 3,650 [ ] 1252444
URLC LMNIVER AL ROBINA CORP - - - 350,547 350,547 128,00 A4 870016
W VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC., - - - A.807.372 &, B07 372 &z 3942 M5
WITA, VITARICH CORPORATION - - - 3,603,000 3,603,000 074 2666220
WLL VISTA LAND & LIFESCAPES, INC. - - - 1,333,875 1,333,875 353 4 10D 579
YT VICTORIAE MLLENG SO INC - - - 228 640 220 Baa 2.40 Bl TRE
WL VULCAN IMOL. & MRG. CORP - - - 5,550,673 5 550,672 .55 5357 206
WWT WIVANT CORPORATION - - - 20,800 20,500 1480 33,050
WEB PHILWEB CORPDEATION = C " 1,410,422 1414422 1.56 2 Tl 82T
BHI WISE HOLDINGS, INC. E v i3 ) B4 345 B4 HR4 0.oo a
WIN WELLEX MOUSTRIES, INC - 5 B 683,100 B.A31.100 023 1538953
WACON WILCON DEFQT, NG, - - - A5.800 65,800 050 20000850
WPl WATERFRONT PHILS | INC. - - - BAz1.100 6,121,100 046 ZE15.T06R
i HURFAS IMC - E - 12 53,300 12 553,300 nss BO50.315
ZHI ZELIS HOLDINGS. INC, - - -
ZHI ZELUE HOLDINGS, MC. - - - 11.275.000 11.275,000 018 2 029,500 00
333,334 1ITT.25 14136910006  14,140,530.625 B35 453 67B65
MNumber of Shares in Vault 333,394
Number of Shares in Clearing House 0
Number of Shares in Transfer Office 3,277,225
Mumber of Shares in PCD 14,136,910,006

Total Number of Shares 14,140,520,625




